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March 31, December 31, March 31,
(in thousands) 2003 2002 2002

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Assets
Cash and due from banks 865,724$         969,483$         654,312$        
Interest bearing deposits in banks 36,117             37,300             29,537            
Trading account securities 22,715             241                  4,040              
Federal funds sold and securities
     purchased under resale agreements 46,456             49,280             60,118            
Loans held for sale 513,638           528,379           184,353          
Securities available for sale - at fair value 3,680,260        3,403,369        2,869,826       
Investment securities - fair value $7,075, $7,725,
     and $11,400, respectively 6,908               7,546               11,264            
Total loans and leases 18,956,724      18,645,189      16,291,064     
     Less allowance for loan and lease losses 337,017           336,648           340,851          
Net loans and leases 18,619,707      18,308,541      15,950,213     
Operating lease assets 1,999,524        2,252,445        3,010,194       
Bank owned life insurance 895,780           886,214           852,931          
Premises and equipment 333,142           341,366           362,135          
Goodwill and other intangible assets 218,363           218,567           209,942          
Customers' acceptance liability 10,004             16,745             15,558            
Accrued income and other assets 650,250           537,775           551,910          

Total Assets 27,898,588$    27,557,251$    24,766,333$   

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Total deposits 17,688,984$    17,499,326$    16,266,785$   
Short-term borrowings 2,149,128        2,541,016        1,803,250       
Bank acceptances outstanding 10,004             16,745             15,558            
Medium-term notes 2,473,006        2,045,123        1,969,398       
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,253,000        1,013,000        17,000            
Subordinated notes and other long-term debt 633,896           788,678           921,407          
Company obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred
  capital securities of subsidiary trusts holding solely
   junior subordinated debentures of the Parent Company 300,000           300,000           300,000          
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,134,778        1,062,868        1,026,756       
     Total Liabilities 25,642,796      25,266,756      22,320,154     

Shareholders' equity
     Preferred stock - authorized 6,617,808 shares;
          none outstanding --- --- ---
     Common stock - without par value; authorized
          500,000,000 shares; issued 257,866,255
          shares; outstanding 228,641,557; 232,878,851
          and 249,991,932 shares, respectively 2,483,258        2,484,421        2,486,832       
     Less 29,224,698; 24,987,404 and 7,874,323
          treasury shares, respectively (553,100)          (475,399)          (144,199)        
     Accumulated other comprehensive income 54,630             62,300             9,484              
     Retained earnings 271,004           219,173           94,062            
     Total Shareholders' Equity 2,255,792        2,290,495        2,446,179       

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 27,898,588$    27,557,251$    24,766,333$   

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Part 1. Financial Information
Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets
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(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2003 2002

Interest and fee income
     Loans and leases 282,956$ 283,708$ 
     Securities 42,078     44,781     
     Other 6,957       6,712       
Total Interest Income 331,991   335,201   
Interest expense
     Deposits 80,817     109,967   
     Short-term borrowings 10,633     11,603     
     Medium-term notes 14,899     16,598     
     Federal Home Loan Bank advances 4,408       258          
     Subordinated notes and other long-term debt 8,605       12,344     
Total Interest Expense 119,362   150,770   

Net Interest Income 212,629   184,431   
Provision for loan and lease losses 36,844     39,010     

Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan and Lease Losses 175,785   145,421   
Operating lease income 133,755   175,906   
Service charges on deposit accounts 39,592     38,530     
Brokerage and insurance income 15,497     17,605     
Trust services 14,911     15,501     
Mortgage banking 14,890     19,565     
Bank Owned Life Insurance income 11,137     11,676     
Other service charges and fees 10,338     10,632     
Securities gains 1,198       457          
Gain on sale of Florida operations --- 175,344   
Other 26,237     13,884     
Total Non-Interest Income 267,555   479,100   
Operating lease expense 111,588   140,785   
Personnel costs 121,743   114,285   
Net occupancy 16,815     17,239     
Outside data processing and other services 16,579     18,439     
Equipment 16,412     16,949     
Marketing 6,626       7,003       
Professional services 6,331       5,401       
Telecommunications 5,701       6,018       
Printing and supplies 3,681       3,837       
Restructuring charges --- 56,184     
Other 17,009     20,534     
Total Non-Interest Expense 322,485   406,674   

Income Before Income Taxes 120,855   217,847   
Income taxes 32,023     124,706   

Net Income 88,832$   93,141$   

  Per Common Share
     Net income
          Basic $0.38 $0.37
          Diluted $0.38 $0.37

     Cash dividends declared $0.16 $0.16

  Average Common Shares
          Basic 231,355   250,749   
          Diluted 232,805   251,953   

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited)

March 31,
For the Three Months Ended
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity

Retained

(in thousands) Shares Amount Shares Amount Income (Loss) Earnings Total

Three Months Ended March 31, 2002:
 Balance, beginning of period 257,866 2,490,724$  (6,672) (123,849)$   25,488$      40,904$    2,433,267$  
    Comprehensive Income:
    Net income 93,141 93,141         
    Unrealized net holding losses on securities
      available for sale arising during the period,
      net of reclassification adjustment for net
      gains included in net income (14,800) (14,800)        
    Unrealized losses on derivative instruments
       used in cash flow hedging relationships (1,204) (1,204)          
      Total comprehensive income 77,137
    Cash dividends declared (39,983) (39,983)        
    Stock options exercised (3,892) 258 7,760 3,868           
    Treasury shares purchased (1,460) (28,110) (28,110)        

 Balance, end of period (Unaudited) 257,866  2,486,832$  (7,874)    (144,199)$   9,484$        94,062$    2,446,179$  

Three Months Ended March 31, 2003:
 Balance, beginning of period 257,866 2,484,421$  (24,987) (475,399)$   62,300$      219,173$  2,290,495$  
    Comprehensive Income:
    Net income 88,832 88,832         
    Unrealized net holding losses on securities
      available for sale arising during the period,
      net of reclassification adjustment for net
      gains included in net income (5,798) (5,798)          
    Unrealized losses on derivative instruments
       used in cash flow hedging relationships (1,872) (1,872)          
      Total comprehensive income 81,162
    Cash dividends declared (37,001) (37,001)        
    Stock options exercised (1,163) 71 1,308 145              
    Treasury shares purchased (4,300) (79,119) (79,119)        
    Other (9) 110 110              

 Balance, end of period (Unaudited) 257,866  2,483,258$  (29,225)  (553,100)$   54,630$      271,004$  2,255,792$  

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Accumulated

Other

ComprehensiveCommon Stock Treasury Stock
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(in thousands of dollars) 2003 2002
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Operating Activities
Net Income  88,832$        93,141$        
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash  
provided by operating activities  
          Provision for loan and lease losses  36,844 39,010
          Depreciation on operating lease assets  98,101 123,984
          Other depreciation and amortization  21,671 17,613
          Deferred income tax expense  25,477 8,521
          (Increase) decrease in trading account securities  (22,474) 9,352
          Decrease in mortgages held for sale  14,741 445,033
          Gains on sales of securities available for sale  (1,192) (457)
          Gains on sales/securitizations of loans (10,814)        (1,395)          
          Gain on sale of Florida banking and insurance operations ---                 (175,344)      
          Restructuring charges ---                 56,184          
          Other, net  (102,777) 17,237
                  Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities  148,409 632,879

 
Investing Activities  

Decrease (increase) in interest bearing deposits in banks  1,183 (8,332)
Proceeds from:  
    Maturities and calls of investment securities  640 1,056
    Maturities and calls of securities available for sale  608,826 238,433
    Sales of securities available for sale  218,001 226,295
Purchases of securities available for sale (995,909)      (497,921)      
Proceeds from sales/securitizations of loans  680,564        110,128        
Net loan and lease originations, excluding sales  (1,145,302) (664,341)
Net decrease (increase) in operating lease assets 154,820 (61,746)        
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment  3,669 13,251          
Purchases of premises and equipment  (10,198) (21,123)
Proceeds from sales of other real estate  1,924            2,412
Net cash paid related to sale of Florida banking and insurance operations ---                 (1,289,917)   
                  Net Cash Used for Investing Activities  (481,782) (1,951,805)

 
Financing Activities  

Increase in total deposits  205,694 853,834
Decrease in short-term borrowings  (391,888) (152,676)
Proceeds from issuance of medium-term notes  635,000 675,000
Payment of medium-term notes  (205,000) (500,000)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 250,000        ---                
Maturity of Federal Home Loan Bank advances (10,000)        ---                
Maturity of long-term debt (150,000)      ---                
Dividends paid on common stock  (28,042) (40,201)
Repurchases of common stock  (79,119)        (28,110)        
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock  145 3,868
                  Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities  226,790 811,715
                  Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (106,583) (507,211)
                  Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period  1,018,763 1,221,641

                  Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period  912,180$      714,430$      
 

Supplemental disclosures:
Income taxes paid 42,865$        60$              
Interest paid 122,174        163,719        
Non-cash activities
     Mortgage loans securitized 108,917 ---                
     Common stock dividends accrued not paid 37,001 39,983

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Three Months Ended March 31, 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
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Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Note 1 – Basis of Presentation 
 
 The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated 
(Huntington) reflect all adjustments consisting of normal recurring accruals, which are, in the opinion of management, 
necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated financial position, the results of operations, and cash flows for the 
periods presented.  These unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared according to the rules and 
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and, therefore, certain information and footnote disclosures 
normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States (GAAP) have been omitted.  The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Huntington’s 
amended 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K/A (2002 Annual Report), which include descriptions of significant accounting 
policies, should be read in conjunction with these interim financial statements. 
 
 Certain amounts in the prior year's financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation. 
 
Note 2 – New Accounting Pronouncements 
 

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s 
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. This 
Interpretation changes current practice in the accounting for, and disclosure of, guarantees, which for Huntington apply 
generally to its standby letters of credit. The Interpretation requires certain guarantees to be recorded at fair value, which 
differs from the prior practice of recording a liability generally when a loss is probable and reasonably estimable, as those 
terms are defined in FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies. The Interpretation also requires a guarantor to 
make significant new disclosures, even when the likelihood of making any payments under the guarantee is remote, which 
also differs from current practice. The recognition requirements of this Interpretation were adopted prospectively January 1, 
2003. The impact of adopting FIN 45 was not material. 
  
  In December 2002, the FASB issued Statement No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition 
and Disclosure. This Statement amends Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to provide 
alternative methods of transition to Statement No. 123’s fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee 
compensation. Statement No. 148 also amends the disclosure provisions of Statement 123 and Accounting Principles Board 
(APB) Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to require disclosure in the summary of significant accounting policies 
of the effects of an entity’s accounting policy with respect to stock-based employee compensation on reported net income 
and earnings per share in annual and interim financial statements. While Statement No. 148 does not amend Statement No. 
123 to require companies to account for employee stock options using the fair value method, the disclosure provisions of 
Statement No. 148 are applicable to all companies with stock-based employee compensation, regardless of whether they 
account for that compensation using the fair value method of Statement No. 123 or the intrinsic value method of APB 
Opinion No. 25, which is the method currently used by Huntington.  

 
In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. This 

Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 (ARB 51), Consolidated Financial Statements, addresses 
consolidation by business enterprises where ownership interests in an entity may vary over time or, in many cases, of 
special-purpose entities (SPEs). To be consolidated for financial reporting, these entities must have certain characteristics. 
ARB 51 requires that an enterprise’s consolidated financial statements include subsidiaries in which the enterprise has a 
controlling financial interest. This Interpretation requires existing unconsolidated variable interest entities to be 
consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively disperse risks among parties involved. An 
enterprise that holds significant variable interests in such an entity, but is not the primary beneficiary, is required to disclose 
certain information regarding its interests in that entity. This Interpretation applies in the first fiscal year or interim period 
beginning after June 15, 2003, to variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds an interest that it acquired before 
February 1, 2003. It also applies immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and to variable 
interest entities in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that date. This Interpretation may be applied (1) 
prospectively with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date on which it is first applied, or (2) by restating previously 
issued financial statements for one or more years with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the beginning of the first year 
restated.  

 
  Huntington is reviewing the implications of Interpretation No. 46 and is considering the adoption methods 
permitted. Management believes that the most significant impact of adoption will be the consolidation of one of the 
securitization trusts formed in 2000. The consolidation of that securitization trust will involve the recognition of the trust’s 
net assets, which, at March 31, 2003, included $1,014 million of indirect automobile loans, $110 million of cash, and 
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$1,000 million of secured debt obligations with an interest rate based on commercial paper rates. Adoption will also 
eliminate the retained interest in the securitization trust and its servicing asset related to the loans in the trust, with carrying 
values at March 31, 2003 of $154 million and $12 million, respectively. The impact to Huntington’s equity and results of 
operations will depend on the method of transition adopted under this new interpretation. Huntington will adopt this new 
standard no later than the end of the third quarter of 2003. 
 
 In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities. This Statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, 
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for 
hedging activities under Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The changes in 
this Statement improve financial reporting by requiring that contracts with comparable characteristics be accounted for 
similarly. In particular, this Statement (1) clarifies under what circumstances a contract with an initial net investment meets 
the characteristic of a derivative discussed in paragraph 6(b) of Statement No. 133, (2) clarifies when a derivative contains a 
financing component, (3) amends the definition of an “underlying” to conform it to language used in Interpretation No. 45, 
and (4) amends certain other existing pronouncements. Those changes will result in more consistent reporting of contracts 
as either derivatives or hybrid instruments. This Statement is substantially effective on a prospective basis for contracts 
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. 
 
Note 3 – Restatement of Results of Operations and Financial Condition 
 

On May 20, 2003, Huntington filed an amended 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K/A that reflected the 
restatement of its prior period financial results for a reclassification of $2.3 billion of automobile leases at December 31, 
2002 from the direct financing lease method to the operating lease method of accounting.  The remaining $0.9 billion of 
automobile leases, as well as all future originations, are accounted for using the direct financing lease methodology.  The 
financial statements, comments, and discussion contained in this report and as described below, reflect the impact of this 
reclassification and restatement.  

 
The appropriate classification of automobile leases as operating leases or direct financing leases under Statement 

of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, Accounting for Leases, can be impacted by residual value insurance coverage.  
Since October 2000, Huntington has had residual value insurance coverage on its entire automobile lease portfolio to 
protect the company from the risk of loss resulting from declines in used car prices.  Such losses arise if the market value of 
the automobile at the end of the lease term is less than the residual value embedded in the original lease contract.  
Management believes these policies effectively protect the company from the risk of declining used car prices.  In April 
2003, management determined that, due to provisions in certain of its residual value insurance policies, the leases covered 
by these policies would not qualify as direct financing leases. 
 
 For leases originated prior to May 2002, the residual value insurance policies contain aggregate loss caps.  The 
residuals insured under these policies are not considered guaranteed, and, accordingly, the related leases fail to qualify as 
direct financing leases under Statement No. 13.  As a result, leases originated prior to May 2002 have been reclassified as 
operating leases for all periods presented.  As of December 31, 2002, $2.3 billion of such leases, net of accumulated 
depreciation, are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Operating lease assets.  All leases originated since April 
2002 are covered under a new residual value insurance policy (the “New Policy”) which insures the full residual value of 
each vehicle and includes no aggregate loss cap.  Leases with residual gains are netted with leases with residual losses when 
claims are settled. The netting provision of the New Policy precluded Huntington from determining the amount of the 
guaranteed residual of any individual leased asset within the portfolio at lease inception. Thus, the related leases failed to 
qualify as direct financing leases. Huntington has amended the New Policy, retroactive to April 2002, by adding an 
endorsement that adds a level of insurance sufficient to meet the criteria as a residual value guarantee pursuant to Statement 
No. 13, on an individual lease-by-lease basis, with no netting provisions. In addition, Huntington continues to maintain 
insurance coverage that insures the full value of the leased residuals. Accordingly, and in reliance on guidance furnished by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission in its announcement at the Financial Accounting Standards Board Emerging 
Issues Task Force meeting on May 15, 2003, all leases covered under the New Policy, as amended, are now appropriately 
classified as direct financing leases in the accompanying financial statements.  As of March 31, 2003, $1.2 billion of such 
leases were included in loans and leases in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  It is management’s intention to insure the 
residuals associated with future originations under the New Policy, as amended, and to classify such new originations as 
direct financing leases. 
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 The impact of this restatement also affected the Consolidated Income Statements.  Under the direct financing lease 
accounting method, interest income is recognized on leases on a “level-yield” or interest method that ascribes a portion of 
each lease payment to interest income, resulting in a constant rate of interest over the life of the lease.  The remaining 
portion of each payment amortizes the net investment in the lease such that at the end of the lease term, the net investment 
equals the residual value as determined at the inception of the lease.  Under operating lease accounting, lease payments are 
recorded as rental income, a component of Operating lease income in the Non-interest income section of the Consolidated 
Income Statements.  Depreciation expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease from the cost of the 
automobile at the inception of the lease to the estimated residual value at the end of the lease term.  Depreciation expense is 
included in Operating lease expense in the Non-interest expense section of the Consolidated Income Statement.  
Depreciation expense is adjusted prospectively at any time during the lease term when the estimated market value of the 
automobile at the end of the lease term changes.  Upon disposition, a gain, reflected in Non-interest income, or a loss, 
reflected in Non-interest expense, is recorded for any difference between the net book value of the lease and the proceeds 
from the disposition of the automobile.   
 
 Over the term of the lease, the cash flows, the timing of the cash flows, and total income recognized are identical 
under either accounting method.  One significant difference between the two methodologies is the timing of income 
recognition.  Under operating lease accounting, less income is recognized in the first half of the lease and more income is 
recognized in the second half than under direct financing lease accounting. 
 
 Another significant difference between the direct financing lease method and the operating lease method of 
accounting is the recognition of credit loss expense.  Credit losses occur when a lease is terminated early because the lessee 
fails to make the required lease payments.  These credit-generated terminations result in Huntington taking possession of 
the automobile earlier than expected.  When this occurs, the market value of the automobile may be less than Huntington’s 
book value, resulting in a loss upon sale or write down to market value while the vehicle is pending sale.  Under the direct 
financing lease accounting method, such losses are charged against an allowance for loan and lease losses that is established 
at the inception of the lease and is adjusted periodically as necessary through provision expense.  Under operating lease 
accounting, the lease is not treated like a loan, but as a depreciable non-interest earning asset.  Therefore, no allowance for 
loan and lease losses is established.  As such, early termination losses are recognized as a component of Operating lease 
expense in the Non-interest expense section of the Consolidated Income Statements. 
 

The fact that part of the auto lease portfolio is accounted for as operating leases, with the remainder, including all 
future production, being accounted for as direct financing leases, will impact the comparability of Huntington’s financial 
statements between reporting periods.  As leases originated before May 2002 and accounted for as operating leases run off, 
and as new originations are accounted for as direct financing leases, the level of operating lease income and operating lease 
expense will decline over future reporting periods while the level of interest income associated with direct financing leases 
will increase.  Additionally, management will increase the provision for loan and lease losses, as appropriate, to provide the 
necessary level of reserves for new direct financing lease originations.  Balance sheet classifications will also be impacted 
as the run off of the operating leases originated before the New Policy, as amended, reduces non-interest earning assets 
while the new direct financing lease originations covered under the New Policy, as amended, increase loans and leases.  

 
 The change to operating lease accounting did not impact 2003 first quarter earnings per share. The change 
impacted negatively the 2002 first quarter earnings by $0.02 per share. The cumulative effect of the restatement on total 
equity as of December 31, 2002, was a reduction of $13.3 million. The following table reflects the previously reported 
amounts and the restated results by financial statement line in Huntington’s balance sheets at December 31, 2002 and 
March 31, 2002, and income statement for the three months ended March 31, 2002: 
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Previously Previously
(in thousands of dollars) Reported Restated Reported Restated

Balance Sheet:
Total loans and leases 20,955,925$   18,645,189$  19,338,947$  16,291,064$  
Allowance for loan and lease losses 368,395          336,648         386,053         340,851         
Net loans and leases 20,587,530     18,308,541    18,952,894    15,950,213    
Operating lease assets --- 2,252,445      --- 3,010,194      
Accrued income and other assets 532,690          537,775         539,044         551,910         
Total Assets 27,578,710     27,557,251    24,745,954    24,766,333    
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,070,991       1,062,868      1,018,618      1,026,756      
Total liabilities 25,274,879     25,266,756    22,312,016    22,320,154    
Retained earnings 232,509          219,172         81,821           94,062           
Total shareholders' equity 2,303,831       2,290,495      2,433,938      2,446,179      
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 27,578,710$   27,557,251$  24,745,954$  24,766,333$  

Three Months Ended March 31, 2002 Previously
(in thousands of dollars) Reported Restated

Income Statement:
Interest and fee income 393,595$       335,201$       
Net interest income 242,825         184,431         
Provision for loan and lease losses 55,781           39,010           
Net interest income after provision for loan and lease losses 187,044         145,421         
Operating lease income --- 175,906         
Other non-interest income 12,118           13,884           
Total non-interest income 301,428         479,100         
Operating lease expense --- 140,785         
Other non-interest expense 18,215           20,534           
Total non-interest expense 263,570         406,674         
Income before income taxes 224,902         217,847         
Income taxes 127,175         124,706         
Net income 97,727$         93,141$         

Earnings per share:
   Basic $0.39 $0.37
   Diluted $0.39 $0.37

Other Information -
Net charge-offs 55,781$         42,972$         

December 31, 2002 March 31, 2002
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Note 4 – Securities Available for Sale  
 
 Securities available for sale at March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 were as follows: 

   
Amortized Amortized

(in thousands of dollars) Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
U.S. Treasury
     Under 1 year  325$           333$           ---$             ---$             
     1-5 years  12,584 13,150 13,434 14,066
     6-10 years                                                                                                                  . 44,304 45,494 4,704 5,367
     Over 10 years                                                                                                            .. 412 477 412 479
        Total                                                                                                                     . 57,625 59,454 18,550 19,912
Federal agencies  
     Mortgage-backed securities  
     1-5 years                                18,005 18,560 34,196 35,166
     6-10 years                                                                                                         . 312,462 319,484 264,219 270,779
     Over 10 years                                                                                                            .. 910,621 926,760 873,552 901,417
        Total                                                                                                                     . 1,241,088 1,264,804 1,171,967 1,207,362
 Other agencies  
     Under 1 year 102,118 105,140 34,923 35,966
     1-5 years                                                                                                                     .. 438,875 460,112 758,032 783,533
     6-10 years                                                                                                                                    .. 62,530 63,630 95,617 97,095
     Over 10 years                                                                                                                                  804,591 812,903 477,185 483,816
        Total                                                                                                                        .. 1,408,114 1,441,785 1,365,757 1,400,410
Total U.S. Treasury and Federal 
        Agencies             2,706,827 2,766,043 2,556,274 2,627,684
Other  
     Under 1 year                       6,668 6,706 7,133 7,183
     1-5 years                                                                                                      .. 61,932 62,745 62,939 63,886
     6-10 years                                                                                                                   58,471 59,922 49,581 51,046
     Over 10 years                                                                                                          574,979 575,789 451,108 449,958
     Retained interest in securitizations 147,821 163,310 146,160 159,978
     Marketable equity securities                                                                                                       44,679 45,745 42,846 43,634
        Total                                                                                                                            894,550 914,217 759,767 775,685

Total Securities Available for Sale                                                                                                                  . 3,601,377$ 3,680,260$ 3,316,041$ 3,403,369$ 

March 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

 
 
Note 5 – Operating Lease Assets 
 
 Operating lease assets at March 31, 2003 and 2002 and December 31, 2002, were as follows: 

March 31, December 31, March 31,
(in thousands of dollars) 2003 2002 2002

Cost of automobiles under operating leases 3,007,188$        3,260,897$        3,967,280$        
Accumulated depreciation (1,007,664)         (1,008,452)         (957,086)            

Operating Lease Assets, Net 1,999,524$        2,252,445$        3,010,194$        
 

 
Depreciation expense related to leased automobiles was $98.1 million and $124.0 million for the three months 

ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
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Note 6 – Comprehensive Income 
 
  The components of Huntington’s Other Comprehensive Income are the unrealized gains (losses) on securities 
available for sale, unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments used in cash flow hedging relationships, and 
minimum pension liability. The related before and after tax amounts in each of the three months ended March 31 were as 
follows: 

(in thousands of dollars) 2003 2002

Minimum pension liability:
Unrealized net loss ---$           ---$           
Related tax benefit ---             ---             

Net ---             ---             

Unrealized holding losses on securities available
   for sale arising during the period:

Unrealized net losses (7,722)       (22,312)     
Related tax benefit 2,703        7,809        

Net (5,019)       (14,503)     

Unrealized holding losses on derivatives used in cash flow
   hedging relationships arising during the period:

Unrealized net losses (2,880)       (1,852)       
Related tax benefit 1,008        648           

Net (1,872)       (1,204)       

Less: Reclassification adjustment for net gains from sales
   of securities available for sale realized during the period:

Realized net gains 1,198        457           
Related tax expense (419)          (160)          

Net 779           297           

Total Other Comprehensive Income (7,670)$     (16,004)$   

Three Months Ended
March 31,

 
 
  Activity in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 was 
as follows: 

Minimum
pension

(in thousands of dollars) liability Total

Balance, December 31, 2001 ---$           29,469$     (3,981)$    25,488$    
Period change ---            (14,800)      (1,204)      (16,004)     
Balance, March 31, 2002 ---$           14,669$     (5,185)$    9,484$      

Balance, December 31, 2002 (195)$       56,856$     5,639$     62,300$    
Current-period change ---            (5,798)        (1,872)      (7,670)       

Balance, March 31, 2003 (195)$       51,058$     3,767$     54,630$    

available for sale

Unrealized gains

relationships
securities

(losses) on derivative
instruments used in
cash flow hedging

(losses) on
Unrealized gains
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Note 7 – Earnings per Share 
 
 Basic earnings per share is the amount of earnings for the period available to each share of common stock 
outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share is the amount of earnings available to each share of 
common stock outstanding during the reporting period adjusted for the potential issuance of common shares upon the 
exercise of stock options. The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for each of the months ended March 31 is 
as follows: 

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2003 2002

Net Income 88,832$     93,141$     

Average common shares outstanding 231,355     250,749     
Dilutive effect of common stock equivalents 1,450         1,204         

Diluted Average Common Shares Outstanding 232,805     251,953     

Earnings Per Share
   Basic $0.38 $0.37
   Diluted $0.38 $0.37

Three Months Ended
March 31,

 
  The average market price of Huntington’s common stock for the period was used in determining the dilutive effect 
of outstanding stock options. Common stock equivalents are computed based on the number of shares subject to stock 
options that have an exercise price less than the average market price of Huntington’s common stock for the period. 
 
  Approximately 7.6 million and 5.6 million stock options were outstanding at March 31, 2003 and 2002, 
respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the options’ exercise price was 
greater than the average market price of the common shares for the period and, therefore, the effect would be antidilutive. 
The weighted average exercise price for these options was $22.21 per share and $23.34 per share at the end of the same 
respective periods. 
 
  At March 31, 2003, a total of 530,826 common shares associated with a 2002 acquisition were held in escrow, 
subject to future issuance contingent upon meeting certain contractual performance criteria. These shares, which were 
included in treasury stock, will be included in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share at the beginning of 
the period when all conditions necessary for their issuance have been met. 
 
Note 8 – Stock-Based Compensation 
 
  Huntington’s stock-based compensation plans are accounted for based on the intrinsic value method promulgated 
by APB Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. Compensation expense for 
employee stock options is generally not recognized if the exercise price of the option equals or exceeds the fair value of the 
stock on the date of grant.  
 
  In December 2002, the FASB issued Statement No. 148, Accounting for Stock -Based Compensation – Transition 
and Disclosure. This Statement amends Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock -Based Compensation, to provide 
alternative methods of transition to Statement No. 123’s fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee 
compensation. Statement No. 148 also amends the disclosure provisions of Statement 123 and APB Opinion No. 28, 
Interim Financial Reporting, to require disclosure in the summary of significant accounting policies of the effects of an 
entity’s accounting policy with respect to stock-based employee compensation on reported net income and earnings per 
share in annual and interim financial statements. While Statement No. 148 does not amend Statement No. 123 to require 
companies to account for employee stock options using the fair value method, the disclosure provisions of Statement No. 
148 are applicable to all companies with stock-based employee compensation, regardless of whether they account for that 
compensation using the fair value method of Statement No. 123 or the intrinsic value method of APB Opinion No. 25.  
 
  Huntington will adopt the fair value method of recording stock options under the transitional guidance of 
Statement No. 148 . Huntington is currently evaluating which of the three methods under the transitional guidance it will 
adopt in 2003.  
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  The following pro forma disclosures for net income and earnings per diluted common share is presented as if 
Huntington had applied the fair value method of accounting of Statement No. 123 in measuring compensation costs for 
stock options. The fair values of the stock options granted were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. 
This model assumes that the estimated fair value of the options is amortized over the options’ vesting periods and the 
compensation costs would be included in personnel expense on the income statement. The following table also includes the 
weighted-average assumptions that were used in the option-pricing model for options granted in each of the quarters 
presented:  

2003 2002

Stock Options Outstanding at period end (in thousands) 17,637    13,928    

Assumptions
Risk-free interest rate 4.15% 4.13%
Expected dividend yield 3.34% 3.34%
Expected volatility of Huntington's common stock 33.8% 33.8%

Pro Forma Results (in millions of dollars)
Net income, as reported 88.8$      93.1$      
Less pro forma expense, net of tax, related to options granted 3.0 3.7
Pro Forma Net Income 85.8$      89.4$      

Net Income Per Common Share:
Basic, as reported $0.38 $0.37
Basic, pro forma 0.37        0.36        
Diluted, as reported 0.38        0.37        
Diluted, pro forma 0.37        0.35        

Three Months Ended
March 31,

  
 
Note 9 – 2002 Restructuring Charges 
 
 During the first quarter of 2002, Huntington recorded pre-tax restructuring charges of $56.2 million related to the 
implementation of strategic initiatives announced July 2001. These charges included expenses of $32.7 million related to 
the sale of the Florida operations, $8.0 million for asset impairment, $4.3 million for the exit of certain e-commerce 
activities, $1.8 million related to facilities, and $9.4 million for other costs. These charges amounted to $36.5 million, or 
$0.14 per share, on an after-tax basis and are reflected in Non-interest expense in the accompanying unaudited consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

Huntington has a remaining reserve for restructuring of $10.6 million at March 31, 2003. Huntington expects that 
this remaining reserve will be adequate to fund the remaining estimated future cash outlays that are expected in the 
completion of the exit activities contemplated by Huntington’s 2001 strategic refocusing plan. 
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Note 10 – 2002 Sale of Florida Banking and Insurance Operations 
 

On February 15, 2002, Huntington completed the sale of its Florida operations to SunTrust Banks, Inc. Included in 
the sale were $4.8 billion of deposits and other liabilities and $2.8 billion of loans and other assets. Huntington received a 
deposit premium of 15%, or $711.9 million. The total net pre-tax gain from the sale was $175.3 million and is reflected in 
Non-interest income. The after-tax gain was $56.7 million, or $0.23 per share. Income taxes related to this transaction were 
$118.6 million, an amount higher than the tax impact at the statutory rate of 35% because most of the goodwill relating to 
the Florida operations was non-deductible for tax purposes.  
 
 On July 2, 2002, Huntington also completed the sale of its Florida insurance operations, The J. Rolfe Davis 
Insurance Agency, Inc., to members of its management.  The sale had no material gain or impact to net income, though it 
affected selected Non-interest income and Non-interest expense categories. 
 
Note 11 – Segment Reporting 

 
 Huntington has three distinct lines of business: Regional Banking, Dealer Sales, and the Private Financial Group 
(PFG). A fourth segment includes Huntington’s Treasury function and other unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue, and 
expense. Line of business results are determined based upon Huntington's management reporting system, which assigns 
balance sheet and income statement items to each of the business segments. The process is designed around Huntington's 
organizational and management structure and, accordingly, the results below are not necessarily comparable with similar 
information published by other financial institutions.  
 

Accounting policies for the lines of business are the same as those used in the preparation of the unaudited 
consolidated financial statements with respect to activities specifically attributable to each business line. However, the 
preparation of business line results requires management to establish methodologies to allocate funding costs and benefits, 
expenses, and other financial elements to each line of business. Changes are made in these methodologies utilized for 
certain balance sheet and income statement allocations performed by Huntington’s management reporting system, as 
appropriate.  Prior periods are typically not restated for these changes. 
 
  The chief decision-makers for Huntington rely on “operating earnings” for review of performance and for critical 
decision-making purposes. Operating earnings exclude the 2002 gain from the sale of the Florida operations, the historical 
Florida banking and insurance operating results, and the 2002 restructuring charges. See Note 9 to the unaudited 
consolidated financial statements for further discussions regarding the 2002 restructuring charges and Note 10 regarding the 
2002 sale of the Florida banking and insurance operations. The financial information that follows is inclusive of the above 
adjustments in 2002 on an after-tax basis to reflect the reconciliation to reported net income.  
 
The following provides a brief description of the four operating segments of Huntington: 
 
Regional Banking: This segment provides products and services to retail, business banking, and commercia l customers. 
This segment’s products include home equity loans, first mortgage loans, direct installment loans, business loans, personal 
and business deposit products, as well as sales of investment and insurance services. These products and services are 
offered in six operating regions within the five states of Ohio, Michigan, Indiana, West Virginia, and Kentucky through 
Huntington's traditional banking network, Direct Bank--Huntington’s customer service center, and Web Bank at 
www.huntington.com. Regional Banking also represents middle -market and large commercial banking relationships which 
use a variety of banking products and services including, but not limited to, commercial loans, international trade, and cash 
management.  

 
Dealer Sales: This segment finances the purchase of automobiles by customers of the automotive dealerships, purchases 
automobiles from dealers and simultaneously leases the automobile under long-term operating and direct financing leases, 
finances the dealership's inventory of automo biles, and provides other banking services to the automotive dealerships and 
their owners. 
 
Private Financial Group: This segment provides products and services designed to meet the needs of Huntington's higher 
wealth customers. Revenue is derived through the sale of personal trust, asset management, investment advisory, brokerage, 
insurance, and deposit and loan products and services. Income and related expenses from the sale of brokerage and 
insurance products is shared with the line of business that generated the sale or provided the customer referral. 
 
Treasury / Other: This segment includes assets, liabilities, equity, revenue, and expense that are not directly assigned or 
allocated to one of the lines of business. 



16 

Since a match-funded transfer pricing system is used to allocate interest income and interest expense to other business 
segments, Treasury / Other results include the net impact of any over or under allocations arising from centralized 
management of interest rate risk including the net impact of derivatives used to hedge interest rate sensitivity.  Furthermore, 
this segment’s results include the net impact of administering Huntington’s investment securities portfolio as part of overall 
liquidity management.  Additionally, amortization expense of intangible assets, the 2002 gain on sale of the Florida 
operations, the 2002 restructuring charges, and other gains or losses not allocated to other business segments are also a 
component. 
 

 Listed below is certain reported financial information reconciled to Huntington’s first quarter 2003 and 2002 
operating results by line of business. 
Income Statements Regional Dealer Treasury/ Huntington
(in thousands of dollars) Banking Sales PFG Other Consolidated

2003
Net interest income 148,542$   23,067$    9,516$     31,504$   212,629$     
Provision for loan and lease losses 23,542       11,389      1,913       ---             36,844         
Non-Interest income 75,361       149,655    27,210     15,329     267,555       
Non-Interest expense 144,989     135,279    26,616     15,601     322,485       
Income taxes 19,381       9,119        2,869       654          32,023         

   Operating earnings/Net income, as reported 35,991$     16,935$    5,328$     30,578$   88,832$       
 

2002
Net interest income 159,113$   (5,340)$     7,818$     22,840$   184,431$     
Provision for loan and lease losses 27,813       9,610        1,587       ---             39,010         
Non-Interest income 79,150       180,218    31,112     188,620   479,100       
Non-Interest expense 149,863     161,236    25,010     70,565     406,674       
Income taxes 21,297       1,411        4,316       97,682     124,706       

   Net income, as reported 39,290       2,621        8,017       43,213     93,141         
   Florida operating results, net of tax 762            794           320          (3,933)      (2,057)         
   Gain on sale of Florida operations, net of tax ---              ---              ---            56,790     56,790         
   Restructuring charges, net of tax ---              ---              ---            36,519     36,519         

   Operating earnings 38,528$     1,827$      7,697$     26,875$   74,927$       
 

 
Period-end Balance Sheet Data
(in millions of dollars) 2003 2002 2003 2002

Regional Banking 14,268$       12,987$       15,403$       15,036$       
Dealer Sales 6,948           6,553           67                51                
PFG 1,267           964              959              727              
Treasury / Other 5,416           4,262           1,260           453              

   Total 27,899$       24,766$       17,689$       16,267$       

Total Deposits at March 31,Total Assets at March 31,
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated (Huntington) is a multi-state diversified financial services company 
organized under Maryland law in 1966 and headquartered in Columbus, Ohio. Through its subsidiaries, Huntington is 
engaged in providing full-service commercial and consumer banking services, mortgage banking services, automobile 
financing, equipment leasing, investment management, trust services, and discount brokerage services, as well as 
underwriting credit life and disability insurance, and selling other insurance and financial products and services. 
Huntington's banking offices are located in Ohio, Michigan, Indiana, Kentucky, and West Virginia. Selected financial 
services are also conducted in other states including Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, and 
Tennessee. Huntington also has a foreign office in the Cayman Islands and a foreign office in Hong Kong. The Huntington 
National Bank (the Bank) is Huntington’s only bank subsidiary. 
 

The following discussion and analysis provides investors and others with information that management believes to 
be necessary for an understanding of Huntington’s financial condition, changes in financial condition, results of operations, 
and cash flows, and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements, notes, and other information contained in 
this document. 
 
Forward-Looking Statements 

This report, including Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, 
contains forward-looking statements about Huntington. These include descriptions of products or services, plans, or 
objectives of management for future operations, and forecasts of revenues, earnings, cash flows, or other measures of 
economic performance. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical 
or current facts.  
 

By their nature, forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks, and uncertainties. A 
number of factors could cause actual conditions, events, or results to differ significantly from those described in the 
forward-looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited to, those set forth under the heading “Business 
Risks” included in Item 1 of Huntington’s amended 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K/A (2002 Annual Report) and other 
factors described from time to time in other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  
 

Management encourages readers of this interim report to understand forward-looking statements to be strategic 
objectives rather than absolute forecasts of future performance. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they 
are made. Huntington does not update forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the 
date the forward-looking statements were made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.  
 
Restatement of Results of Operations and Financial Condition 

On May 20, 2003, Huntington filed an amended 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K/A that reflected the 
restatement of its prior period financial results for a reclassification of $2.3 billion of automobile leases at December 31, 
2002 from the direct financing lease method to the operating lease method of accounting.  The remaining $0.9 billion of 
automobile leases, as well as all future originations, are accounted for using the direct financing lease methodology.  The 
financial statements, comments, and discussion contained in this report and as described below, reflect the impact of this 
reclassification and restatement.  

 
The appropriate classification of automobile leases as operating leases or direct financing leases under Statement 

of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, Accounting for Leases, can be impacted by residual value insurance coverage.  
Since October 2000, Huntington has had residual value insurance coverage on its entire automobile lease portfolio to 
protect the company from the risk of loss resulting from declines in used car prices.  Such losses arise if the market value of 
the automobile at the end of the lease term is less than the residual value embedded in the original lease contract.  
Management believes these policies effectively protect the company from the risk of declining used car prices.  In April 
2003, management determined that, due to provisions in certain of its residual value insurance policies, the leases covered 
by these policies would not qualify as direct financing leases. 
 
 For leases originated prior to May 2002, the residual value insurance policies contain aggregate loss caps.  The 
residuals insured under these policies are not considered guaranteed, and, accordingly, the related leases fail to qualify as 
direct financing leases under Statement No. 13.  As a result, leases originated prior to May 2002 have been reclassified as 
operating leases for all periods presented.  As of December 31, 2002, $2.3 billion of such leases, net of accumulated 
depreciation, are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as operating lease assets.  All leases originated since April 
2002 are covered under a new residual value insurance policy (the “New Policy”) which insures the full residual value of 
each vehicle and includes no aggregate loss cap.  Leases with residual gains are netted with leases with residual losses when 
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claims are settled. The netting provision of the New Policy precluded Huntington from determining the amount of the 
guaranteed residual of any individual leased asset within the portfolio at lease inception. Thus, the related leases failed to 
qualify as direct financing leases. Huntington has amended the New Policy, retroactive to April 2002, by adding an 
endorsement that adds a level of insurance sufficient to meet the criteria as a residual value guarantee pursuant to Statement 
No. 13, on an individual lease-by-lease basis, with no netting provisions. In addition, Huntington continues to maintain 
insurance coverage that insures the full value of the leased residuals. Accordingly, and in reliance on guidance furnished by 
the Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission in its announcement at the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
Emerging Issues Task Force meeting on May 15, 2003, all leases covered under the New Policy, as amended, are now 
appropriately classified as direct financing leases in the accompanying financial statements.  As of March 31, 2003, $1.2 
billion of such leases were included in loans and leases in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  It is management’s intention to 
insure the residuals associated with future originations under the New Policy, as amended, and to classify such new 
originations as direct financing leases. 
 
 The impact of this restatement also affected the Consolidated Income Statements.  Under the direct financing lease 
accounting method, interest income is recognized on leases on a “level-yield” or interest method that ascribes a portion of 
each lease payment to interest income, resulting in a constant rate of interest over the life of the lease.  The remaining 
portion of each payment amortizes the net investment in the lease such that at the end of the lease term, the net investment 
equals the residual value as determined at the inception of the lease.  Under operating lease accounting, lease payments are 
recorded as rental income, a component of Operating lease income in the Non-interest income section of the Consolidated 
Income Statements.  Depreciation expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease from the cost of the 
automobile at the inception of the lease to the estimated residual value at the end of the lease term.  Depreciation expense is 
included in Operating lease expense in the Non-interest expense section of the Consolidated Income Statement.  
Depreciation expense is adjusted prospectively at any time during the lease term when the estimated market value of the 
automobile at the end of the lease term changes.  Upon disposition, a gain, reflected in Non-interest income, or a loss, 
reflected in Non-interest expense, is recorded for any difference between the net book value of the lease and the proceeds 
from the disposition of the automobile.   
 
 Over the term of the lease, the cash flows, the timing of the cash flows, and total income recognized are identical 
under either accounting method.  One significant difference between the two methodologies is the timing of income 
recognition.  Under operating lease accounting, less income is recognized in the first half of the lease and more income is 
recognized in the second half than under direct financing lease accounting. 
 
 Another significant difference between the direct financing lease method and the operating lease method of 
accounting is the recognition of credit loss expense.  Credit losses occur when a lease is terminated early because the lessee 
fails to make the required lease payments.  These credit-generated terminations result in Huntington taking possession of 
the automobile earlier than expected.  When this occurs, the market value of the automobile may be less than Huntington’s 
book value, resulting in a loss upon sale or write down to market value while the vehicle is pending sale.  Under the direct 
financing lease accounting method, such losses are charged against an allowance for loan and lease losses that is established 
at the inception of the lease and is adjusted periodically as necessary through provision expense.  Under operating lease 
accounting, the lease is not treated like a loan, but as a depreciable non-interest earning asset.  Therefore, no allowance for 
loan and lease losses is established.  As such, early termination losses are recognized as a component of Operating lease 
expense in the Non-interest expense section of the Consolidated Income Statements. 
 

The fact that part of the auto lease portfolio is accounted for as operating leases, with the remainder, including all 
future production, being accounted for as direct financing leases, will impact the comparability of Huntington’s financial 
statements between reporting periods.  As leases originated before April 2002, accounted for as operating leases run off, 
and as new originations are accounted for as direct financing leases, the level of operating lease income and operating lease 
expense will decline over future reporting periods while the level of interest income associated with direct financing leases 
will increase.  Additionally, management will increase the provision for loan and lease losses as appropriate over time to 
provide the necessary level of reserves for new direct financing lease originations.  Balance sheet classifications will also be 
impacted as the run off of the operating leases originated before the New Policy, as amended, reduces non-interest earning 
assets while the new direct financing lease originations covered under the New Policy, as amended, increase loans and 
leases.  
 

As a result, Huntington restated its consolidated financial statements for the interim periods in 2002 and 2001, and 
each of the years 1997 through 2000, and filed an amended 2002 Annual Report with the SEC on May 20, 2003. 
 

The results of the restatement are reflected in the unaudited consolidated financial statements, notes to the 
unaudited consolidated financial statements, and management’s discussion and analysis for all current and prior periods 
reported in this Form 10-Q. Note 3 in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements contains additional 
information regarding the restatement. 
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Critical Accounting Policies 

Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements included in Huntington’s amended 2002 Annual Report lists 
significant accounting policies used in the development and presentation of its financial statements. This discussion and 
analysis, the significant accounting policies, and other financial statement disclosures identify and address key variables 
and other qualitative and quantitative factors that are necessary for an understanding and evaluation of the organization, its 
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. 
 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States (GAAP) requires Huntington’s management to establish critical accounting policies and make accounting estimates, 
assumptions, and judgments that affect amounts recorded and reported in its financial statements. An accounting estimate 
requires assumptions about uncertain matters that could have a material effect on the financial statements of Huntington if a 
different amount within a range of estimates were used or if estimates changed from period to period. Readers of this 
interim report should understand that estimates are made under facts and circumstances at a point in time and changes in 
those facts and circumstances could produce actual results that differ from when those estimates were made. Huntington’s 
management has identified the most significant accounting estimates and their related application in Huntington’s amended 
2002 Annual Report.  
 
Special Purpose Entities (SPEs) 

Huntington established two securitization trusts, or SPEs, in 2000. These two trusts had total assets of 
approximately $1.1 billion at March 31, 2003. In the securitization transactions, indirect automobile loans that Huntington 
originated were sold to these trusts. Under current GAAP, these trusts are not required to be consolidated in Huntington’s 
financial statements. As such, the loans and the debt within the trusts are not included on Huntington’s balance sheets at 
March 31. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements in Huntington’s amended 2002 Annual Report for more 
information regarding securitized loans. 
 

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of 
Variable Interest Entities. This Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 (ARB 51), Consolidated Financial 
Statements, addresses consolidation by business enterprises where ownership interests in an entity may vary over time or, 
in many cases, of special-purpose entities (SPEs). To be consolidated for financial reporting, these entities must have 
certain characteristics. ARB 51 requires that an enterprise’s consolidated financial statements include subsidiaries in which 
the enterprise has a controlling financial interest. This Interpretation requires existing unconsolidated variable interest 
entities to be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively disperse risks among parties 
involved. An enterprise that holds significant variable interests in such an entity, but is not the primary beneficiary, is 
required to disclose certain information regarding its interests in that entity. This Interpretation applies in the first fiscal 
year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, to variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds an interest that 
it acquired before February 1, 2003. It also applies immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, 
and to variable interest entities in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that date. This Interpretation may be applied 
(1) prospectively with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date on which it is first applied, or (2) by restating 
previously issued financial statements for one or more years with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the beginning of the 
first year restated.  
 

Huntington is reviewing the implications of Interpretation No. 46 and is considering the adoption methods 
permitted. Management believes that the most significant impact of adoption will be the consolidation of one of the 
securitization trusts formed in 2000. The consolidation of that securitization trust will involve the recognition of the trust’s 
net assets, which, at March 31, 2003, included $1,014 million of indirect automobile loans, $110 million of cash, and 
$1,000 million of secured debt obligations with an interest rate based on commercial paper rates. Adoption will also 
eliminate the retained interest in that securitization trust and its servicing asset related to the loans in the trust, with carrying 
values at March 31, 2003 of $154 million and $12 million, respectively. The impact to Huntington’s equity and results of 
operations will depend on the method of transition adopted under this new interpretation. Huntington will adopt this new 
standard no later than the end of the third quarter of 2003. 
 
Derivatives and Other Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 

Huntington uses a variety of derivatives, principally interest rate swaps, in its asset and liability management 
activities to mitigate the risk of adverse interest rate movements on either cash flows or market value of certain assets and 
liabilities.  
 

Like other financial organizations, Huntington uses various commitments in the ordinary course of business that, 
under GAAP, are not recorded in the financial statements. Specifically, Huntington makes various commitments to extend 
credit to customers, to sell loans, and to maintain obligations under operating-type noncancelable leases for its facilities. 
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Derivatives and other off-balance sheet arrangements are discussed under the “Interest Rate Risk Management” section of 
this interim report and in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements.  
 
Related Party Transactions 

Various directors and executive officers of Huntington, and entities affiliated with those directors and executive 
officers, are customers of Huntington’s subsidiaries. All transactions with Huntington’s directors and executive officers and 
their affiliates are conducted in the ordinary course of business under normal credit terms, including interest rate and 
collateralization, and do not represent more than the normal risk of collection. A summary of the indebtedness of 
management can be found in Note 9 to Huntington’s amended 2002 Annual Report. All other related party transactions, 
including those reported in Huntington’s 2003 Proxy Statement and transactions subsequent to December 31, 2002, were 
considered immaterial to its financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. 
 
SUMMARY DISCUSSION OF RESULTS 
 

Huntington’s first quarter 2003 earnings were $88.8 million, or $0.38 per common share, down $4.3 million, or 
5%, from earnings of $93.1 million, or $0.37 per common share, in the 2002 first quarter, and up $14.4 million, or 19%, 
from earnings of $74.4 million, or $0.32 per common share, in the 2002 fourth quarter.   
 

The decrease in earnings compared to the year-ago quarter was a result of the sale of Huntington’s Florida banking 
and insurance operations and related charges which occurred in the 2002 first quarter, as discussed in more detail below.  
Excluding the impact of these items, Huntington’s first quarter 2003 earnings were up $13.9 million ($19.0 million pre-
tax), or 19%, from earnings in the first quarter 2002 of $74.9 million ($101.9 million pre-tax), or $0.30 per common share. 
The primary drivers of this $19.0 million increase in pre-tax earnings from the year-ago quarter were a $13.3 million, or 
3%, increase in fully taxable equivalent revenue and a $9.7 million, or 3%, decrease in non-interest expense, partially offset 
by a $3.0 million, or 9%, increase in the provision for loan and lease losses.   
 

In July 2001, Huntington announced significant strategic initiatives, primarily the plan to sell its Florida banking 
and insurance operations, the implementation of which had a material impact on Huntington’s performance results.  The 
sale of the Florida banking operations, completed on February 15, 2002, included 143 banking offices and 456 ATMs with 
approximately $2.8 billion in loans and leases and other tangible assets and $4.8 billion in deposits and other liabilities.  
The 2002 first quarter’s results included a $175.3 million pre-tax gain ($56.7 million after tax, or $0.23 per common share) 
from the sale of the Florida banking operations, a $4.1 million pre-tax loss ($2.7 million after tax loss, or $0.01 loss per 
common share) from the Florida banking operations through the mid-February sale, as well as $56.2 million pre-tax ($36.5 
million after tax, or $0.14 per common share) in restructuring charges.  The sale of the J. Rolfe Davis Insurance Agency, 
Inc., Huntington’s Florida-based insurance operations, was completed on July 2, 2002.  The year-ago quarter included the 
following items associated with these businesses:  fully taxable equivalent net interest income of $9.7 million pre-tax, a 
provision for loan losses of $5.2 million pre-tax, non-interest income of $10.6 million pre-tax excluding the $175.3 million 
pre-tax gain, and non-interest expense of $18.3 million pre-tax excluding $56.2 million pre-tax in restructuring charges. 
These items plus the gain and restructuring charges, resulted in net income of $116.0 million pre-tax, or $18.2 million after 
tax, or $0.07 per share.    
 

A reconciliation of the differences in Huntington’s income statements and balance sheets between the 2002 first 
quarter on a GAAP basis and as adjusted to exclude the impact of the sale of the Florida banking and insurance operations 
and related charges, referred to as an “operating basis”, is presented in Tables 18 and 19 on pages 42 and 43 of this report, 
respectively.  
 

Net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis increased $29.1 million, or 16%, from the year-ago quarter, 
reflecting a 10% increase in average earning assets and an 18 basis point, or an effective 5%, increase in the fully taxable 
equivalent net interest margin to 3.81% from 3.63%.  Excluding the impact of the sale of Huntington’s Florida banking 
operations, net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis increased $38.8 million, or 22%, reflecting an 18% 
increase in average earning assets, and a 12 basis point, or an effective 3%, increase in the net interest margin to 3.81% 
from 3.69%. 
 

Non-interest income decreased $211.5 million, or 44%, from the first quarter 2002, reflecting primarily the $175.3 
gain on the sale of the Florida banking operations in the year-ago quarter.  Non-interest income decreased $25.6 million, or 
9%, from the year-ago quarter excluding from the year-ago quarter the gain from the sale of the Florida banking operations 
and Florida banking and insurance operating results.  This decrease reflected declines in operating lease and mortgage 
banking income, partially offset by increases in service charges on deposit accounts, brokerage and insurance fees, other 
service charges and fees, and other income, which included a $7.0 million gain from the sale of $560 million of automobile 
loans late in the 2003 first quarter.   
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The provision for loan and lease losses declined $2.2 million, or 6%, reflecting the sale of the Florida banking 

operations in the year-ago first quarter.  Adjusting the year-ago first quarter to exclude the impact of this sale, the provision 
for loan and lease losses increased $3.0 million, or 9%, reflecting primarily loan and lease growth exclusive of Florida. 
 

Non-interest expense declined $84.2 million, or 21%, as the year-ago quarter included $56.2 million of 
restructuring charges, and was down $28.0 million, or 8%, excluding the impact of these charges.  These decreases were 
primarily driven by a $29.2 million, or 21%, decrease in operating lease expense.  Other expense items contributing to the 
decline were outside data processing and other services, down $1.9 million, or 10%, and other expense, down $3.5 million, 
or 17%.  The only expense that was up appreciably was personnel costs, which increased $7.5 million, or 7%.  Excluding 
from the year-ago quarter the impact of the sale of Huntington’s Florida banking and insurance operations in addition to the 
restructuring charges, non-interest expense was down $9.7 million, or 3%.  The primary driver of this decrease was a $29.2 
million decline in operating lease expense, partially offset by a $17.4 million, or 17%, increase in personnel costs, and to a 
smaller degree, increases in net occupancy, professional services, and equipment. 
 

First quarter 2003 return on average equity (ROE) was 16.1%, slightly higher than 15.8% in the year-ago quarter, 
though the return on average assets (ROA) of 1.31% was down from 1.42% a year earlier.  The efficiency ratio for the first 
quarter 2003 was 67.0%.  Excluding the impact of the sale of Florida banking and insurance operations and related items, 
ROE in the year-ago quarter was 12.7%, with ROA and the efficiency ratio at 1.22% and 70.8%, respectively. 
 
 



Table 1 - Selected Quarterly Income Statement Data (1)

2003
(in thousands, except per share amounts) First Fourth Third Second First

Total Interest Income 331,991$ 341,446$ 339,378$  322,909$ 335,201$ 
Total Interest Expense 119,362   131,191   133,894    131,928    150,770   
Net Interest Income 212,629   210,255   205,484    190,981    184,431   
Provision for loan and lease losses 36,844     51,236     54,304      49,876      39,010     
Net Interest Income After   
  Provision for Loan and Lease Losses 175,785   159,019   151,180    141,105    145,421   
Operating lease income 133,755   143,465   154,367    168,047    175,906   
Service charges on deposit accounts 39,592     41,177     37,460      35,354      38,530     
Brokerage and insurance income 15,497     13,941     13,664      16,899      17,605     
Trust services 14,911     15,306     14,997      16,247      15,501     
Mortgage banking 14,890     11,410     6,289        10,725      19,565     
Bank Owned Life Insurance income 11,137     11,443     11,443      11,443      11,676     
Other service charges and fees 10,338     10,890     10,837      10,529      10,632     
Securities gains 1,198       2,339       1,140        966           457          
Gain on sale of Florida operations --- --- --- --- 175,344   
Merchant Services gain --- --- 24,550     --- ---
Other 26,237     21,620     21,323      17,811      13,884     
Total Non-Interest Income 267,555   271,591   296,070    288,021    479,100   
Operating lease expense 111,588   120,747   125,743    131,695    140,785   
Personnel costs 121,743   113,852   107,477    105,146    114,285   
Net occupancy 16,815     13,454     14,815      14,756      17,239     
Outside data processing and other services 16,579     17,209     15,128      16,592      18,439     
Equipment 16,412     17,337     17,378      16,659      16,949     
Marketing 6,626       6,186       7,491        7,231        7,003       
Professional services 6,331       8,026       6,083        6,267        5,401       
Telecommunications 5,701       5,714       5,609        5,320        6,018       
Printing and supplies 3,681       3,999       3,679        3,683        3,837       
Restructuring charges --- --- --- --- 56,184     
Other 17,009     25,005     19,050      20,683      20,534     
Total Non-Interest Expense 322,485   331,529   322,453   328,032    406,674   

Income Before Income Taxes 120,855   99,081     124,797    101,094    217,847   
Income taxes 32,023     24,687     33,193      27,169      124,706   

Net Income 88,832$   74,394$   91,604$    73,925$   93,141$   
  

Per Common Share
   Net Income - Diluted $0.38 $0.32 $0.38  $0.30  $0.37
   Cash Dividends Declared $0.16 $0.16 $0.16  $0.16  $0.16

  
Return on:

   Average total assets 1.31% 1.10% 1.41% 1.19%  1.42%

   Average total shareholders' equity 16.1% 13.2% 15.9% 12.6%  15.8%
Net interest margin 3.81% 3.83% 3.98% 3.91%  3.63%

Efficiency ratio (2) 67.0% 68.8% 67.6% 68.4%  71.4%

Effective tax rate 26.5% 24.9% 26.6% 26.9% 57.2%

Revenue - Fully Taxable Equivalent (FTE)   

Net Interest Income 212,629$ 210,255$ 205,484$  190,981$  184,431$ 

Tax Equivalent Adjustment (3) 2,096       1,869       1,096        1,071        1,169       

Net Interest Income 214,725   212,124   206,580   192,052   185,600   

Non-Interest Income 267,555   271,591   296,070   288,021   479,100   

Total Revenue 482,280$ 483,715$ 502,650$  480,073$  664,700$ 
 

Total Revenue Excluding Securities Gains 481,082$ 481,376$ 501,510$ 479,107$ 664,243$ 
 

(1)  Each of the quarters in 2002 have been restated.  Please see note 3 to the unaudited consolidated financial
       statements for further information.
(2)   Excludes gain on sale of Florida operations, Merchant Services gain, and securities gains from revenue, and 
       restructuring charges and amortization of intangible assets from expenses.
(3)  Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.

2002
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
Net Interest Income 
 
2003 First Quarter versus 2002 First Quarter 

Net interest income on a fully-taxable equivalent basis was $214.7 million in the 2003 first quarter, up $29.1 
million, or 16%, from the year-ago quarter reflecting 10% growth in average earning assets, primarily loans and leases, and 
an 18 basis point, or an effective 5%, increase in the fully taxable equivalent net interest margin to 3.81% from 3.63%.  
Excluding the impact of the sold Florida banking operations in the year-ago quarter, net interest income on a fully taxable 
equivalent basis was up $38.8 million, or 22%, driven by a $3.5 billion, or 18%, increase in average earning assets, and a 
12 basis point, or an effective 3%, increase in the net interest margin to 3.81% from 3.69%.  (See Tables 18 and 19 on page 
42 and 43). The increase in the net interest margin, excluding the impact of the Florida operations, reflected the positive 
impact of the lower rate environment between the two periods, and a higher percentage of wholesale funding. However, the 
margin declined in each of the last two quarters as it became increasingly difficult to lower funding costs commensurate 
with the decline on earning asset yields. 
 

Average loans and leases in the 2003 first quarter were $19.0 billion, up $1.6 billion, or 9%, from the year-ago 
quarter reflecting $2.9 billion, or 18%, growth in average non-Florida-related loans and leases, partially offset by the $1.4 
billion in average loans and leases sold with the Florida banking operations in the year-ago quarter.  The $2.9 billion 
growth in average loans and leases excluding the sold Florida loans and leases reflected a 9% increase in commercial real 
estate loans and a $2.7 billion, or 39%, increase in average consumer loans.  This growth in consumer loans came from 
residential mortgages (up 72%) and home equity loans (up 16%) reflecting the increased demand due to the low interest 
rate environment, and automobile loans and direct financing leases (up 56%).  The growth in automobile loans and leases 
reflected annualized growth in automobile loans of 21%.  Direct financing leases averaged $1.0 billion in the 2003 first 
quarter, up $0.9 billion from the year-ago quarter, reflecting the amendment to the new policy as described in note 3 to the 
unaudited consolidated financial statements. Prior to May 2002, all leases were reflected as operating leases. Average 
commercial loans, excluding sold Florida loans from the year-ago quarter, were essentially unchanged reflecting a 
combination of factors including continued weakness in the economy, as well as planned reductions in shared national 
credits and the sale of certain commercial loans in the 2002 fourth quarter.   
 

During the recent quarter, Huntington sold $560 million of auto loans as part of a plan to reduce exposure to the 
automobile financing business.  This sale had no material impact on average loan and lease balances, however, as the 
transaction occurred late in the quarter.   
 

Average core deposits were $15.0 billion in the 2003 first quarter, down $1.3 billion, or 8%, from the year-ago 
quarter, as a result of the $2.3 billion in average core deposits sold with the Florida banking operations in the year-ago 
quarter, partially offset by growth of $1.0 billion, or 7%, in non-Florida-related core deposits.  The $1.0 billion increase in 
average non-Florida-related core deposits reflected very strong growth in average interest bearing demand deposits, which 
increased $1.2 billion, or 28%, from the year-ago quarter, as retail certificates of deposit (CDs) declined $0.4 billion, or 
10%, reflecting planned reductions in these higher cost deposits. 
 



Table 2 - Consolidated Quarterly Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Margin Analysis
(in millions)

2003

Fully Tax Equivalent Basis (1)
First Fourth Third Second First

Assets

Interest bearing deposits in banks 37$             34$          35$         29$         34$         1.61 % 1.93 % 2.06 % 2.44 % 2.02 %

Trading account securities 12 9  7 6 5 4.63 3.37 4.95 5.37 2.79

Federal funds sold and securities purchased

   under resale agreements 57 83  76 68 62 2.14 1.83 1.40 1.51 1.43

Mortgages held for sale 459 467  267 174 381 5.56 5.84 6.57 7.07 6.51
Securities:  

      Taxable 3,014 3,029  2,953 2,735 2,713 5.17 5.53 6.01 6.33 6.43

      Tax exempt 275 234  108 96 101 7.22 7.15 7.52 7.69 7.76

           Total Securities 3,289 3,263  3,061 2,831 2,814 5.34 5.64 6.07 6.37 6.48

Loans and Leases: (2)
 

     Commercial 5,621 5,553  5,502 5,614 6,045 5.51 5.76 5.86 5.84 5.75

     Real Estate  

          Construction 1,188 1,071  1,248 1,259 1,291 4.23 4.26 4.70 5.14 4.99

          Commercial 2,565 2,601  2,316 2,233 2,364 5.76 5.92 6.31 6.54 6.80

     Consumer  

           Automobile loans and leases 4,136 3,745  3,264 2,764 2,822 8.09 8.57 9.73 9.69 8.86

           Home equity 3,239 3,168  3,062 2,911 3,209 5.35 5.82 5.96 6.05 6.56

           Residential mortgage 1,841 1,702 1,492 1,390 1,185 5.62 5.69 5.96 6.21 6.62

           Other loans 388 398 404 413 482 7.47 8.14 8.58 8.62 8.59

           Total Consumer 9,604 9,013  8,222 7,478 7,698 6.67 7.04 7.58 7.57 7.54

Total loans and leases 18,978        18,238     17,288    16,584    17,398    6.05 6.33 6.66 6.66 6.63

Allowance for loan and lease losses 349 386  367 357 371
Net loans and leases 18,629 17,852  16,921 16,227 17,027

Total earning assets 22,832 22,094  20,734 19,692 20,694 5.92 % 6.19 % 6.54 % 6.60 % 6.58 %

Operating lease assets 2,126          2,382      2,657      2,906      3,041      

Cash and due from banks 740 717  763 722 819

Intangible assets 218 225 202 213 536

All other assets 1,844 1,811  1,792 1,796 1,851

Total Assets 27,411$      26,843$   25,781$  24,972$  26,570$  

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity  

Core deposits  

     Non-interest bearing deposits 2,958$        2,955$     2,868$    2,739$    3,041$    

     Interest bearing demand deposits 5,597 5,305  5,269 4,920 5,148 1.47 % 1.57 % 1.77 % 1.84 % 1.80 %

     Savings deposits 2,771 2,746  2,766 2,808 3,097 1.89 1.73 1.81 1.83 1.87

     Other domestic time deposits 3,671 4,002  4,167 4,226 5,015 3.91 4.26 4.40 4.51 4.88

          Total core deposits 14,997 15,008  15,070 14,693 16,301 2.31 2.50 2.68 2.78 2.98

Domestic time deposits of $100,000 or more 743 735  777 844 1,052 2.86 3.29 3.29 3.33 3.58

Brokered time deposits and negotiable CDs 1,155 1,057 907 649 302 1.98 2.25 2.37 2.48 2.48

Foreign time deposits 515 409  370 296 270 1.06 1.29 1.43 1.38 1.91

     Total deposits 17,410 17,209  17,124 16,482 17,925 2.27 2.49 2.66 2.77 2.99

Short-term borrowings 2,347 2,515  2,108 1,886 1,998 1.84 1.86 1.88 1.97 2.36

Medium-term notes 2,233 1,832  1,752 1,910 1,967 2.71 3.26 3.37 3.21 3.43

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,216 848 228 14 17 1.47 1.84 2.04 5.97 6.10

Subordinated notes and other long-term debt,

   including preferred capital securities 937 1,147  1,215 1,215 1,216 3.72 3.80 3.99 4.03 4.12

     Total interest bearing liabilities 21,185 20,596  19,559 18,768 20,082 2.29 % 2.53 % 2.73 % 2.82 % 3.04 %

All other liabilities 1,029 1,059  1,075 1,114 1,063

Shareholders' equity 2,239 2,233  2,279 2,351 2,384

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 27,411$      26,843$  25,781$  24,972$  26,570$  

Net interest rate spread  3.63 % 3.66 % 3.82 % 3.78 % 3.54 %

Impact of non-interest bearing funds on margin 0.18 0.17 0.16 0.13 0.09

Net Interest Margin 3.81 % 3.83 % 3.98 % 3.91 % 3.63 %

(1) Fully tax equivalent yields are calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.
(2) Individual loan components include applicable fees.
(3) Loan and deposit average rates include impact of applicable derivatives.

2002

Average Rates (3)

FirstSecondFourth Third

Average Balances

2002 2003

First
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2003 First Quarter versus 2002 Fourth Quarter 
Fully-taxable equivalent net interest income increased $2.6 million from the fourth quarter reflecting growth in 

earning assets, primarily loans and leases, partially offset by a lower net interest margin and the negative impact of two less 
days in the quarter.  The net interest margin declined to 3.81% from 3.83% driven by a number of factors including growth 
in lower rate, but higher quality, auto loans and leases, and heavy prepayments of higher rate mortgages, partially offset by 
the maturity of $675 million in high-rate retail CDs.  Average earning assets increased $0.7 billion, or 13% annualized, 
related to growth in average loans and leases, as other earning assets were basically unchanged.  
 

Average loans and leases increased 16% on an annualized basis from the fourth quarter reflecting a 26% annualized 
growth in consumer loans.  Average residential mortgages grew 33% annualized, reflecting continued strong demand for 
residential mortgages, with average home equity loans and lines of credit up 9% annualized.  Average automobile loans and 
leases increased at a 42% annualized rate reflecting two factors.  First, good underlying growth in automobile loans, and 
second, the rapid build up of automobile direct financing lease balances as new leases originated since April 2002 are 
recorded as direct financing leases. Total average commercial and commercial real estate loans increased 6% annualized, 
reflecting a 5% annualized increase in average commercial loans and a 9% annualized increase in average commercial real 
estate loans. 
 

With interest rates at low absolute levels, retail CDs represent a relatively expensive source of funds.  As such, 
other more attractive funding sources were emphasized during the 2003 first quarter, which resulted in average retail CD 
balances declining $331 million, as $675 million of high-rate CDs matured during the quarter.  Total average core deposits, 
excluding retail CDs, increased $320 million, or 12%, annualized.  
 
Provision for Loan and Lease Losses 

The provision for loan and lease losses is the expense necessary to maintain the allowance for loan and lease losses 
(ALLL) at a level adequate to absorb management’s estimate of inherent losses in the total loan portfolio.  Taken into 
consideration are such factors as current period net charge-offs that are charged against the ALLL, current period loan and 
lease growth and any related estimate of likely losses associated with that growth based on historical experience, the current 
economic outlook and the anticipated impact on credit quality of existing loans and leases, and other factors.   
 

The provision expense in the first quarter of 2003 was $36.8 million, down $2.2 million, or 6%, from the year-ago 
quarter, reflecting the sale of the Florida banking operations in the year-ago quarter.  Excluding the impact of the loans sold 
with the Florida banking operations, the provision expense was up $3.0 million, or 9%, reflecting loan and lease growth 
partially offset by reduced net charge-offs. (See Tables 18 and 19 on page 42 and 43) 
 

The provision for loan and lease losses in the first quarter 2003 was down $14.4 million from the fourth quarter 
2002, reflecting lower loan growth in the first quarter 2003 than the fourth quarter of 2002, and reduced provision expense 
for direct financing leases. The current quarter’s $36.8 million provision expense exceeded net charge-offs by $4.0 million, 
or 12%.  The allowance for loan and lease losses at March 31, 2003 as a percent of period-end loans and leases was 1.78%, 
down from 1.81% at the end of last year, and from 2.09% at the end of the year-ago first quarter.  The allowance for loan 
and lease losses as a percent of non-performing assets (NPAs) decreased to 239% at March 31, 2003 from 246% at the end 
of the 2002 fourth quarter, but was significantly higher than the 151% level at the end of the year-ago quarter.  (See Credit 
Risk section for discussion of the ALLL, NPAs, and net charge-offs). 
 
Non-Interest Income  
 
2003 First Quarter versus 2002 First Quarter 

Non-interest income was $267.6 million in the 2003 first quarter, down $211.5 million, or 44%, from the year-ago 
quarter, which included a $175.3 million gain from the sale of the Florida banking operations.  Excluding the gain from the 
year-ago quarter, as well as $10.6 million of non-interest income associated with the sold Florida banking and insurance 
operations, 2003 first quarter non-interest income was down $25.6 million, or 9%. See Tables 18 and 19 on pages 42 and 
43. Table 3 reflects non-interest income detail for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002: 
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Table 3 - Non-Interest Income

(in thousands of dollars)
2003 2002 % Change

Operating lease income 133,755$  175,906$  (24.0)       %
Service charges on deposit accounts 39,592      38,530      2.8           
Brokerage and insurance income 15,497      17,605      (12.0)       
Trust services 14,911      15,501      (3.8)         
Mortgage banking 14,890      19,565      (23.9)       
Bank Owned Life Insurance income 11,137      11,676      (4.6)         
Other service charges and fees 10,338      10,632      (2.8)         
Securities gains 1,198        457           N.M.
Gain on sale of Florida operations ---             175,344    N.M.
Other 26,237      13,884      89.0         

  Total Non-Interest Income 267,555$  479,100$  (44.2)       %

Three Months Ended March 31,

 As shown in Table 3, and excluding the impact of the year-ago quarter’s gain on sale of the Florida operations, 
non-interest income was down $36.2 million.  This reflected a $42.2 million, or 24%, decrease in operating lease income 
(see Operating Lease discussion below). 

 
Other income was $26.2 million in the current quarter, up $12.4 million including a $7.0 million gain from the sale 

of $560 million of automobile loans in the current quarter and a $5.4 million, or 39%, aggregate increase in a number of 
activities including trading, investment banking, and merchant services.  Service charges on deposit accounts were up $1.1 
million, or 3%, reflecting a $5.3 million, or 16%, increase due primarily to higher consumer NSF and overdraft-related fees, 
substantially offset by the $4.2 million decline associated with the sold Florida banking and insurance operations.  Other 
service charges and fees declined $0.3 million, or 3%, from the year-ago quarter, reflecting a $1.2 million, or 13%, increase 
related to higher transaction-based product fees, more than offset by the $1.5 million decrease associated with the sold 
Florida banking and insurance operations.   

 
Brokerage and insurance income was $15.5 million in the 2003 first quarter.  This was down $2.1 million, or 12%, 

reflecting a $4.2 million decline associated with the sold Florida banking and insurance operations, partially offset by a 
$2.1 million, or 16%, increase related to growth in non-Florida related annuity income (up 34%). 

 
Mortgage banking income was down $4.7 million, or 24%, reflecting a combination of factors related to the lower 

level of interest rates in the current quarter versus a year ago.  Loan originations were up 50% from the year-ago quarter, 
which increased origination fee income.  However, this benefit was more than offset by the negative impact lower interest 
rates had on accelerating the amortization of mortgage servicing rights (MSRs), as well as the absence of gains on sale of 
MSRs  in the year-ago quarter.  The sale of the Florida banking operations had no material effect on mortgage banking year-
over-year comparisons. 
 
2003 First Quarter versus 2002 Fourth Quarter 

Non-interest income was down $4.0 million, or 1%, from the fourth quarter.  This reflected a $9.7 million decline 
in operating lease income.  (See Operating Lease Assets on page 28 for further discussion).  Reflecting seasonal factors, 
service charges on deposits declined $1.6 million, or 4%.  Trust services income declined $0.4 million, or 3%, reflecting 
lower account balances driven by weak capital markets.  Other service charges and fees declined $0.6 million, or 5%, due 
to the seasonal decline in transaction-based product fees. Partially offsetting these declines was a $4.6 million increase in 
other income, which included the $7.0 million pre-tax gain on the sale of $560 million of automobile loans, partially offset 
by a decrease in letter of credit fees of $2.3 million, or 11%, related to the adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 45.  
Mortgage banking income increased $3.5 million, or 30%, as the fourth quarter 2002 results included an impairment charge 
of $6.2 million on mortgage servicing rights.  The current quarter had no such impairment.  Brokerage and insurance 
income increased $1.6 million, or 11%, driven by record annuity sales and growth in insurance products. 
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Non-Interest Expense 

 
2003 First Quarter versus 2002 First Quarter 

Non-interest expense in the 2003 first quarter was $322.5 million, down $84.2 million, or 21%, from the year-ago 
quarter, which included $56.2 million of restructuring charges.  Excluding restructuring charges, as well as $18.3 million of 
non-interest expenses associated with the sold Florida banking and insurance operations as reflected in Table 18, first 
quarter non-interest expense in 2003 was down $9.7 million, or 3%, from the year-ago quarter. See Tables 18 and 19 on 
pages 42 and 43. Table 4 reflects non-interest expense detail for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002: 
Table 4 - Non-Interest Expense

(in thousands of dollars)
2003 2002 % Change

Operating lease expense 111,588$  140,785$  (20.7)         %
Personnel costs 121,743    114,285    6.5            
Net occupancy 16,815      17,239      (2.5)           
Outside data processing and other services 16,579      18,439      (10.1)         
Equipment 16,412      16,949      (3.2)           
Marketing 6,626        7,003        (5.4)           
Professional services 6,331        5,401        17.2          
Telecommunications 5,701        6,018        (5.3)           
Printing and supplies 3,681        3,837        (4.1)           
Restructuring charges --- 56,184      N.M.
Other 17,009      20,534      (17.2)         
  Total Non-Interest Expense 322,485$  406,674$  (20.7)         %

Three Months Ended March 31,

 
The largest contributor to the year-over-year decrease in non-interest expense was lower operating lease expense, 

which decreased $29.2 million, or 21%.  (See Operating Lease Assets – Table 5 on page 28 for further discussion).  Net 
occupancy expense declined $0.4 million, or 2%, from a year ago, reflecting a $2.5 million decline associated with the sold 
Florida banking and insurance operations, partially offset by a $2.0 million, or 14%, increase related to higher snow 
removal costs in the current quarter.  The other expense category declined $3.5 million, or 17%, from a year ago, due to a 
$2.7 million, or 13%, decline related to lower residual value insurance expense and a $2.2 million decline associated with 
the sold Florida banking and insurance operations, of which $1.2 million related to the elimination of goodwill. 
 

Personnel costs, which totaled $121.7 million in the 2003 first quarter, were up $7.5 million, or 7%, from the year-
ago quarter, and reflected a $17.4 million, or 17%, increase, partially offset by a $10.0 million decline associated with the 
sold Florida banking and insurance operations.  The $17.4 million increase reflected a combination of factors including 
increased pension and health insurance expense, higher staffing in regional banking and the credit work out areas, as well as 
higher production-related compensation supporting higher levels of mortgage origination production.  Full-time equivalent 
staff at the end of March 2003 was 8,134 compared with 8,342 at the end of the first quarter last year.  This decline in staff 
reflected planned staff reductions, primarily Florida-related operations support staff located outside the state of Florida 
which were not part of the sold banking operations.  Professional services were up $0.9 million, or 17%, reflecting a $1.1 
million, or 21%, increase due to higher legal and consulting fees mostly related to expanded loan workout activities, 
partially offset by a $0.2 million decline associated with the sold Florida banking and insurance operations. 
 
2003 First Quarter versus 2002 Fourth Quarter 

Non-interest expense was down $9.0 million, or 3%, from the fourth quarter driven primarily by lower operating 
lease expense, which was down $9.2 million, or 8% (see Operating Lease Assets – Table 5 on page 28 and the related 
discussion), lower other expense, down $8.0 million, and lower professional services, down $1.7 million.  Personnel costs 
were up $7.9 million, or 7%, reflecting a combination of factors including the annual FICA reset, higher pension costs, 
higher performance-based compensation, and transition expenses related to a reduction in headcount.  The $3.4 million 
increase in net occupancy expense reflected higher real estate taxes and snow removal costs. 
 

The efficiency ratio was 67.0% in the 2003 first quarter, down slightly from 70.8% in the year-ago quarter 
excluding the impact of the sold Florida banking and insurance operations, and from 68.8% in the 2002 fourth quarter. 
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Operating Lease Assets 
Operating lease assets represent automobile leases originated prior to May 2002 and is a portfolio that will run-off 

over time as all automobile lease originations since then have been recorded as direct finance leases in the automobile loan 
and lease category.  As a result, the income and expenses associated with this portfolio will also decline over time.  
Average operating lease assets in the 2003 first quarter were $2.1 billion, down 30% from the year-ago quarter and 11% 
from the 2002 fourth quarter. 
 

Operating lease income, which totaled $133.8 million in the 2003 first quarter, is the largest non-interest income 
category and represented 50% of non-interest income. This was down $42.2 million, or 24%, from the year-ago quarter and 
$9.7 million, or 7%, from the fourth quarter, reflecting declines in average operating leases of 30% and 11%, respectively.  
Since April 2002, new automobile leases originated by Huntington are accounted for as direct financing leases, whereas 
automobile leases prior to that date were accounted for as operating leases.  Thus, the operating lease asset balances 
continue to decline through both depreciation expense and lease termination. However, rental income is only impacted by 
lease terminations, which decline at a slower rate than the underlying operating lease balance. Fees and recoveries from 
early terminations also declined 83% and 39%, respectively, from the year-ago quarter. 

 
Operating lease expense totaled $111.6 million, down $29.2 million, or 21%, from the year ago quarter and down 

$9.2 million, or 8%, from the 2002 fourth quarter.  These declines also reflect the fact that this portfolio will decrease over 
time as no new operating leases are being recorded.  Losses on early terminations declined $4.2 million, or 26%, from the 
year-ago quarter, and $2.0 million from the 2002 fourth quarter. 

 
Losses on operating lease assets consist of residual losses at termination and losses on early terminations.  

Residual losses arise if the ultimate value / sales proceeds from the automobile are less then Black Book value, which 
represents the insured amount under the company’s residual value insurance policies.  This situation may occur due to 
excess wear-and-tear or excess mileage, not collected from the lessee.  Losses on early terminations occur when a lessee, 
due to credit or other reasons, turns in the automobile before the end of the lease term.  A loss is realized if the automobile 
is sold for a value less than the net book value at the date of turn-in.  Such losses are not covered by the residual value 
insurance policies.  To the extent the company is successful in collecting any deficiency from the lessee, amounts received 
are recorded as recoveries from early terminations. 

 
Table 5 details operating lease assets performance for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002: 

Table 5 - Operating Lease Assets Performance

Three Months Ended March 31,
2003 2002 % Change

Balance Sheet (in millions)
Average operating lease assets outstanding 2,126$      3,041$      (30.1)       %

Income Statement (in thousands)
Net rental income 130,274$  165,041$  (21.1)       %
Fees 1,195        7,133        (83.2)       
Recoveries - early terminations 2,286        3,732        (38.7)       
        Total Operating Lease Income 133,755    175,906    (24.0)       

Depreciation and residual losses at termination 99,283      124,244    (20.1)       
Losses - early terminations 12,305      16,541      (25.6)       
        Total Operating Lease Expense 111,588    140,785    (20.7)       
        Net Earnings Contribution 22,167$    35,121$    (36.9)       %

Earnings ratios (1)

    Net rental income 24.51% 21.71%
    Depreciation 18.68% 16.34%
(1) As a percent of average operating lease assets, quarterly amounts annualized.

 
Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes in the 2003 first quarter was $32.0 million and represented an effective tax rate on 
income before taxes of 26.5%.  This was down $92.7 million from the year-ago quarter, primarily due to the fact that the 
year-ago quarter included the tax-related impacts associated with the gain on the sale of the Florida banking operations, 
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restructuring charges, and taxes on the operating results of the sold Florida banking and insurance operations.  Excluding 
these impacts from the year-ago quarter, 2003 first quarter taxes were up $5.1 million, or 19%, with the year-ago quarter 
representing an effective tax rate of 26.4%.  The effective tax rate in the 2002 fourth quarter was 24.9%.  Each quarter, 
taxes for the full year are re-estimated and year-to-date tax accrual adjustments made.  A number of factors, such as year-
to-date adjustments, can result in fluctuations in quarterly effective tax rates. 
 
CREDIT RISK 
 

Huntington’s exposure to credit risk is managed through the use of consistent underwriting standards that 
emphasize “in-market” lending while avoiding highly leveraged transactions as well as excessive industry and other 
concentrations. The credit administration function employs risk management techniques to ensure that loans and leases 
adhere to corporate policy and problem loans and leases are promptly identified. These procedures provide executive 
management with the information necessary to implement policy adjustments where necessary, and to take corrective 
actions on a proactive basis. Beginning in 2002, management increased its emphasis on its commercial lending to 
customers with existing or potential relationships within Huntington’s primary markets. As a result, outstanding shared 
national credits were $994 million at March 31, 2003, up slightly from $979 million at the same period-end last year, but 
down from a peak of $1.5 billion at June 30, 2001.  
 

In the first quarter of 2003, Huntington revised and implemented its internal risk grading system for commercial 
and commercial real estate credits. Huntington migrated from a single grading, to a dual risk grading system that separately 
measures the probability of default and loss in event of default and provides Huntington with more specificity in the risk 
assessment process.  
 
Loan and Lease Composition 

Table 6 shows the period-end loan portfolio by loan type and business segment: 
Table 6 - Loan and Lease Composition

(in millions of dollars)  
By Type Balance % Balance % Balance %

Commercial  5,747$    30.3    5,606$     30.1   5,682$     34.9   
Commercial real estate  3,778      19.9    3,731       20.0   3,488       21.4   
     Total Commercial and
        Commercial Real Estate  9,525      50.2    9,337       50.1   9,170       56.3   
Consumer  
     Automobile loans  2,767      14.6    3,072       16.5   2,562       15.7   
     Automobile direct financing leases  1,161      6.1      893          4.8     78            0.5     
     Home equity  3,286      17.3    3,200       17.2   2,831       17.4   
     Residential mortgage  1,835      9.7      1,749       9.4     1,232       7.6     
     Other loans  383         2.1      394          2.0     418          2.5     
     Total Consumer  9,432      49.8    9,308       49.9   7,121       43.7   
Total Loans and Leases  18,957$  100.0  18,645$   100.0 16,291$   100.0 

 
By Business Segment
Regional Banking

    Central Ohio / West Virginia 4,836$    25.5    4,824$     25.9   4,502$     27.6   
   Northern Ohio 2,709      14.3    2,607       14.0   2,723       16.7   
   Southern Ohio / Kentucky 1,558      8.2      1,506       8.1     1,391       8.5     
   West Michigan 1,949      10.3    1,871       10.0   1,842       11.3   
   East Michigan 1,212      6.4      1,192       6.4     986          6.1     
   Indiana 692         3.7      682          3.7     690          4.3     
      Total Regional Banking 12,956    68.4    12,682     68.1   12,134     74.5   
Dealer Sales 4,704      24.8    4,711       25.3   3,226       19.8   
Private Financial Group 1,121      5.9      1,062       5.7     809          5.0     

 Treasury / Other 176         0.9      190          0.9     122          0.7     
Total Loans and Leases 18,957$  100.0  18,645$   100.0 16,291$   100.0 

March 31, 2003 December 31, 2002 March 31, 2002
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Net Charge-offs 
Net charge-offs in the first quarter of 2003 were $32.8 million and represented an annualized 0.69% of average 

loans and leases. In 2001, Huntington exited the sub-prime automobile and truck and equipment lending business and at 
that time established reserves to cover the inherent losses in these portfolios and against which future loan losses would be 
charged. Net charge-offs excluding these exited businesses were $31.2 million, down from $39.2 million, or an annualized 
0.92% of average loans and leases, in the same quarter last year, and down significantly from $81.3 million, or an 
annualized 1.79% of average loans and leases, in the fourth quarter 2002. Huntington initiated two credit actions associated 
with commercial and commercial real estate loans in the fourth quarter 2002. The first was the sale of $47.2 million in non-
performing assets with $21.4 million of related charge-offs. The second action was the full charge-off of a $29.9 million 
credit exposure to a single health care finance company. This credit was identified as a non-performing loan and 
subsequently charged-off, all within the fourth quarter of 2002. These credit actions had no earnings impact, as existing loss 
reserve levels were sufficient to absorb the combined $51.3 million in charge-offs. 
 

Table 7 reflects net charge-offs and annualized charge-offs as a percent of average loans and leases by type of 
loan: 
Table 7 - Net Loan and Lease Charge-offs

2003
(in thousands) First Fourth Third Second First

Net Charge-offs

Commercial 14,942$  59,725$  16,808$  21,468$  19,527$  
Commercial real estate 546         7,536      4,085      2,037      3,983      
   Total commercial and
      commercial real estate 15,488    67,261    20,893    23,505    23,510    

Consumer
   Automobile loans 9,268      8,778      6,869      5,733      10,217    
   Automobile and direct financing leases 920         730         202         498         ---
   Home equity loans 4,053      3,526      2,934      3,096      3,950      
   Residential mortgage 145         72           123         555         122         
   Other loans 1,330      967         907         1,225      1,425      
      Total consumer 15,716    14,073    11,035    11,107    15,714    
Total net charge-offs, excluding exited
   businesses 31,204    81,334    31,928    34,612    39,224    
Net charge-offs related to exited businesses 1,632      1,824      1,857      2,385      3,748      
Total Net Charge-offs 32,836$  83,158$  33,785$  36,997$  42,972$  

2002

Net Charge-offs as a % of Average Loans

Commercial 1.06        % 4.30        % 1.21        % 1.53        % 1.31        %
Commercial real estate 0.06        0.82        0.45        0.23        0.44        
   Total commercial and
      commercial real estate 0.66        2.92        0.91        1.04        0.98        

Consumer
   Automobile loans 1.21        1.21        1.00        0.92        1.59        
   Automobile direct financing leases 0.36        0.38        0.17        1.20        ---
   Home equity loans & lines of credit 0.50        0.45        0.38        0.43        0.50        
   Residential mortgage 0.03        0.02        0.03        0.16        0.04        
   Other loans 1.39        0.99        0.91        1.22        1.23        
      Total consumer 0.66        0.63        0.54        0.60        0.84        
Total net charge-offs, excluding exited
  businesses 0.66        1.79        0.74        0.84        0.92        

Total Net Charge-offs 0.69        % 1.82        % 0.78        % 0.89        % 1.00        %

 



 31 

 
Economic activity has remained sluggish and the uncertainty about the future level of activity has increased 

recently. Nevertheless, and though net charge-offs are expected to be higher in the 2003 second quarter than the first 
quarter’s annualized 0.69% level of average loans, 2003 full-year net charge-offs are still expected to be in the 0.65%-
0.75% range. 
 
Non-Performing Assets 

Non-performing assets consist of loans and leases that are no longer accruing interest, loans and leases that have 
been renegotiated to below market rates based upon financial difficulties of the borrower, and real estate acquired through 
foreclosure. When interest accruals are suspended, accrued interest income is reversed with current year accruals charged to 
earnings and prior year amounts generally charged off as a credit loss. Commercial and commercial real estate loans are 
generally placed on non-accrual status when collection of principal or interest is in doubt or when the loan is 90 days past 
due. Consumer loans and leases, excluding residential mortgages, are not placed on non-accrual status but are charged off 
in accordance with regulatory statutes, which is generally no more than 120 days past due. Residential mortgages, while 
highly secured, are placed on non-accrual status within 180 days past due as to principal and 210 days past due as to 
interest, regardless of security. A charge-off on a residential mortgage is recorded when the loan has been foreclosed and 
the loan balance exceeds the fair value of the real estate. The fair value of the collateral is then recorded as real estate 
owned. When, in management’s judgment, the borrower’s ability to make periodic interest and principal payments resumes 
and collectibility is no longer in doubt, the loan is returned to accrual status.  
 
 Table 8 summarizes NPAs at the end of each of the recent five quarters in addition to 90 day past due information: 

Table 8 - Non-Performing Assets and Past Due Loans and Leases

2003
(in thousands) First Fourth Third Second First

Non-accrual loans and leases:
   Commercial 94,754$    91,861$    147,392$  156,252$  162,959$  
   Commercial real estate 22,585      26,765      47,537      45,795      43,295      
   Residential mortgage 9,302        9,443        8,488        8,776        11,896      
Total Nonaccrual Loans and Leases 126,641    128,069    203,417    210,823    218,150    
Renegotiated loans ---             ---            37            1,268        1,268        
Total Non-Performing Loans and Leases 126,641    128,069    203,454    212,091    219,418    
Other real estate, net 14,084      8,654        10,675      11,146      6,112        

Total Non-Performing Assets 140,725$  136,723$  214,129$  223,237$  225,530$  

Non-performing loans and leases as a % of
  total loans and leases 0.67% 0.69% 1.14% 1.26% 1.35%
Non-performing assets as a % of
   total loans and leases and other real estate 0.74% 0.73% 1.20% 1.33% 1.38%

Accruing loans and leases
  past due 90 days or more 58,159$    61,526$    57,337$    47,663$    51,446$    

2002

 Total NPAs were $140.7 million at March 31, 2003, up slightly from $136.7 million at the end of 2002, but down 
significantly from $225.5 million at the end of the first quarter last year.  The overall decrease in NPAs from a year ago was 
primarily due to the sale of NPAs that occurred in the fourth quarter 2002.  NPAs as a percent of total loans and leases and 
other real estate were 0.74% at March 31, 2003, compared with 1.38% a year ago and 0.73% at December 31, 2002.  
 

Loans and leases past due ninety days or more and still accruing interest at the end of the first quarter of 2003 and 
2002 were $58.2 million and $51.4 million, respectively.  These past due loans and leases represented 0.31% and 0.32% of 
total loans and leases at the end of the first quarter of 2003 and 2002, respectively. At December 31, 2002, these loans and 
leases amounted to $61.5 million and represented 0.33% of total loans and leases. Table 9 reflects the change in NPAs for 
the recent five quarters: 
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Table 9 - Non-Performing Asset Activity

2003
(in thousands) First Fourth Third Second First

Beginning of Period 136,723$  214,129$  223,237$  225,530$  227,493$ 
New non-performing assets 48,359       65,506     47,275     73,002     74,446     
Returns to accruing status (5,993)       (12,658)    (380)         (337)         (3,749)      
Loan and lease losses (17,954)     (72,767)    (25,480)    (28,297)    (26,072)    
Payments (15,440)     (28,500)    (26,308)    (44,303)    (37,663)    
Sales (4,970)       (28,987)    (4,215)      (2,358)      (8,925)      
End of Period 140,725$   136,723$  214,129$  223,237$  225,530$ 

2002

 
The first quarter of 2003 was the first quarter that Huntington experienced an increase in its NPA’s since the fourth 

quarter of 2001. Loans and leases entering nonaccrual status were $48.4 million during the recent quarter while returns to 
accruing status were $6.0 million. While the economy has continued to be weak and the uncertainty about the future level 
of economic activity has increased, management continues to expect NPAs to remain around current levels through the 
remainder of the year. 
 
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses 

The ALLL was $337.0 million at March 31, 2003, down from $340.9 million at the end of the first quarter of 
2002, but relatively unchanged from the $336.6 million at December 31, 2002.  The ALLL represented 1.78% of total loans 
and leases at March 31, 2003, 1.81% at December 31, 2002, and 2.09% at the end of the first quarter last year. The decline 
in the loan loss reserve ratio from 1.81% at the end of last year to 1.78% at March 31, 2003, reflected lower provision 
expense for automobile leases due to the revised risk management methodology. The period-end ALLL was 239% of NPAs 
at March 31, 2003, compared with 151% a year ago and 246% at December 31, 2002. 
 

Table 10 reflects the activity in the ALLL for the recent five quarters. The $3.0 million allowance of sold loans in 
the 2003 first quarter related to the $560 million of automobile loans sold in that quarter, with the $22.3 million of ALLL 
sold in the year-ago quarter reflecting the $2.5 billion of loans sold in connection with the sale of the Florida banking 
operations. 
Table 10 - Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and Related Statistics

2003
(in thousands) First Fourth Third Second First

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses,
   Beginning of Period 336,648$  371,033$   351,696$ 340,851$ 369,332$ 
Loan and lease losses (40,265)    (93,890)      (43,748)    (45,728)    (50,986)    
Recoveries 7,429       10,732       9,963       8,731       8,014       
   Net loan and lease losses (32,836)    (83,158)      (33,785)    (36,997)    (42,972)    

Provision for loan and lease losses 36,844     51,236       54,304     49,876     39,010     
Allowance of (sold) purchased loans (2,981)      ---              1,264       ---            (22,297)    
Allowance of securitized loans (658)         (2,463)        (2,446)      (2,034)      (2,222)      
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses,
   End of Period 337,017$  336,648$   371,033$ 351,696$ 340,851$ 

Allowance for loan and lease losses as
   a % of total loans and leases 1.78% 1.81% 2.07% 2.09% 2.09%
Allowance for loan and lease losses as
   a % of non-performing loans and leases 266.1% 262.9% 182.4% 165.8% 155.3%
Allowance for loan and lease losses as
   a % of non-performing assets 239.5% 246.2% 173.3% 157.5% 151.1%

2002
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                Huntington allocates the ALLL to each loan and lease category based on an expected loss ratio determined by 
continuous assessment of credit quality based on portfolio risk characteristics and other relevant factors such as historical 
performance, significant acquisitions and dispositions of loans, and internal controls. For the commercial and commerc ial 
real estate credits, expected loss factors are assigned by credit grade at the individual loan and lease level at the time the 
loan or lease is originated. On a periodic basis, management reevaluates these credit grades. The aggregation of these 
factors represents management’s estimate of the inherent loss in the portfolio. 

 
The portion of the allowance allocated to the more homogeneous consumer loan and lease segments is determined 

by expected loss ratios based on the risk characteristics of the various segments and giving consideration to existing 
economic conditions and trends. Expected loss ratios incorporate factors such as trends in past due and non-accrual 
amounts, recent loan and lease loss experience, current economic conditions, and risk characteristics of various loan and 
lease categories. Actual loss ratios experienced in the future could vary from those expected, as performance is a function 
of factors unique to each customer as well as general economic conditions. While amounts are allocated to various portfolio 
segments, the total ALLL, excluding impairment reserves prescribed under provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standard No. 114, is available to absorb losses from any segment of the portfolio.  

 
Unallocated reserves are bas ed on levels of delinquencies in the accruing loan and lease portfolios, the level of 

non-performing loans and leases, and general economic conditions and volatility. Unallocated reserves were 3% at March 
31, 2003.  The revisions made by management to its internal risk grading system implemented in the first quarter of 2003 
reduced the unallocated portion of the ALLL by more thoroughly allocating the allowance to the various loan and lease 
categories, primarily commercial and commercial real estate loans. 

 
INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Huntington seeks to minimize earnings volatility by managing the sensitivity of net interest income and the fair 
value of its net assets to changes in market interest rates. The Board of Directors and the Asset and Liability Management 
Committee (ALCO) oversee various risks by establishing broad policies and specific operating limits that govern a variety 
of risks inherent in operations, including liquidity, counterparty credit risk, settlement, and market risks. 

 
Market risk is the potential for declines in the fair value of financial instruments due to changes in interest rates, 

exchange rates, and equity prices. Interest rate risk is Huntington’s primary market risk. It results from timing differences in 
the repricing and maturity of assets and liabilities and changes in relationships between market interest rates and the yields 
on assets and rates on liabilities, including the impact of embedded options. 

 
Interest rate risk management is a dynamic process that encompasses new business flows onto the balance sheet, 

wholesale investment and funding, and the changing market and business environment. Effective management of interest 
rate risk begins with appropriately diversified investments and funding sources. To accomplish overall balance sheet 
objectives, management regularly accesses money, bond, futures, and options markets, as well as trading exchanges. In 
addition, Huntington contracts with dealers in over-the-counter financial instruments for interest rate swaps. ALCO 
regularly monitors position concentrations and the level of interest rate sensitivity to ensure compliance with approved risk 
tolerances. 

 
Interest rate risk modeling is performed monthly. An income simulation model is used to measure the sensitivity 

of forecasted net interest income to changes in market rates over a one-year horizon. Although Bank Owned Life Insurance 
and automobile operating lease assets are classified as non-interest earning assets, Huntington includes these portfolios in 
its interest sensitivity analysis because both have attributes similar to fixed-rate interest earning assets. Market value risk 
(referred to as Economic Value of Equity or EVE) is measured using a static balance sheet. The models used for these 
measurements take into account prepayment speeds on mortgage loans, mortgage-backed securities, and consumer 
installment loans, as well as cash flows of other loans and deposits. Balance sheet growth assumptions are also considered 
in the income simulation model. Moreover, the models incorporate the effects of embedded options, such as interest rate 
caps, floors, and call options, and account for changes in relationships among interest rates.  
  

The baseline scenario for the income simulation, with which all others are compared, is based on market interest 
rates implied by the prevailing yield curve. Alternative market rate scenarios are then employed to determine their impact 
on the baseline scenario. These alternative market rate scenarios include spot rates remaining unchanged for the entire 
measurement period, parallel rate shifts on both a gradual and immediate basis, as well as movements in rates that alter the 
shape of the yield curve. Scenarios are also developed to measure basis risk, such as the impact of LIBOR-based rates 
rising or falling faster than the prime rate.  
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                       When evaluating short-term interest rate risk exposure, management uses, for its primary measurement, scenarios 
that model parallel shifts in the yield curve resulting in a gradual 200 basis point increase/decrease in rates over the next 
twelve-month period. At December 31, 2002, only the 200 basis point increasing parallel shift in the yield curve was 
reported because a 200 basis point decrease in the interest rate curve was not feasible given the overall low level of interest 
rates. At March 31, 2003, that scenario modeled net interest income 0.7% lower than the internal forecast of net interest 
income over the same time period using the current level of forward rates, which remained relatively unchanged from the 
negative impact to net interest income generated by the same 200 basis point scenario at the end of 2002. Management 
believes further declines in market rates would put modest downward pressure on net interest income, resulting from the 
implicit pricing floors in non-maturity deposits.  
  

The net interest margin has been adversely impacted in recent months by: (1) fixed-rate consumer loan repayments 
being reinvested at lower market rates; (2) high repayments of residential mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities; 
(3) the implicit floors in retail deposits as rates declined to historically low levels; (4) the rapid growth of lower-yielding 
residential adjustable-rate mortgage loans retained on the balance sheet; (5) the lower yield on the higher quality 
automobile loan originations, and; (6) the flattening of the yield curve. The net interest margin will continue to be adversely 
affected by these factors over the next few quarters.  

 
The primary measurement for EVE risk assumes an immediate and parallel increase in rates of 200 basis points. At 

March 31, 2003, the model indicated that such an increase in rates would be expected to reduce the EVE by 2.7% and 
compares with an estimated negative impact of  3.8% at December 31, 2002.  
  

The model is a useful but simplified representation of Huntington’s underlying interest rate risk profile. 
Simulations reflect choices of statistical techniques, functional forms, model parameters, and numerous other assumptions. 
Nonetheless, experience has demonstrated and management believes that these models provide reliable guidance for 
measuring and managing interest rate sensitivity.  
 
LIQUIDITY 
 

Effectively managing liquidity involves meeting the cash flow requirements of depositors and borrowers, as well 
as satisfying the operating cash needs of the organization to fund corporate expansion and other activities. ALCO 
establishes guidelines and regularly monitors the overall liquidity position of the business and ensures that various 
alternative strategies exist to cover unanticipated events. Furthermore, ALCO policies and/or guidelines ensure that 
wholesale funding sources are diversified in order to avoid concentration in any one market source. Management believes 
sufficient liquidity was available at the end of the recent quarter to meet estimated funding needs of the Bank and parent 
company. 

 
Deposits are Huntington’s primary source of funding, of which 87% were provided by the Regional Banking 

segment. Table 11 details the types and sources of deposits by business segment at March 31, 2003, and compares these 
balances by type and source to balances at December 31, 2002 and March 31, 2002: 
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Table 11 - Deposit Liabilities

(in millions of dollars)  
By Type Balance % Balance % Balance %

Demand deposits  
     Non-interest bearing  2,971$      16.8    3,074$     17.6    2,857$     17.6   
     Interest bearing  5,850        33.1   5,374       30.7   4,747       29.2   
Savings deposits  2,981        16.9   2,851       16.3   2,896       17.8   
Other domestic time deposits 3,523        19.9   3,956       22.6   4,180       25.7   
     Total Core Deposits  15,325      86.7   15,255     87.2   14,680     90.3   
Domestic time deposits of
   $100,000 or more  798           4.5     732          4.2     896          5.5     
Brokered and negotiable CDs 1,208        6.8     1,093       6.2     451          2.8     
Foreign time deposits  358           2.0     419          2.4     240          1.4     
     Total Deposits  17,689$    100.0  17,499$   100.0  16,267$   100.0 

By Business Segment
Regional Banking
   Central Ohio / West Virginia 5,386$      30.4   5,361$     30.6   5,453$     33.5   
   Northern Ohio 3,536        20.0   3,602       20.6   3,265       20.1   
   Southern Ohio / Kentucky 1,337        7.6     1,365       7.8     1,336       8.2     
   West Michigan 2,513        14.2   2,402       13.7   2,510       15.4   
   East Michigan 2,008        11.4   1,962       11.2   1,909       11.7   
   Indiana 623           3.5     613          3.5     563          3.5     
      Total Regional Banking 15,403      87.1   15,305     87.4   15,036     92.4   
Dealer Sales 67             0.4     59            0.3     51            0.3     
Private Financial Group 959           5.4     924          5.3     727          4.5     
Treasury / Other 1,260        7.1     1,211       7.0     453          2.8     
Total Deposits 17,689$    100.0 17,499$   100.0 16,267$   100.0 

March 31, 2003 December 31, 2002 March 31, 2002

 
 
Core deposits, which include non-interest bearing and interest bearing demand deposits, savings accounts, and 

other domestic time deposits, including certificates of deposit under $100,000 and IRAs, satisfy 86.7% of Huntington’s 
funding needs.  Sources of wholesale funding include Federal funds purchased, securities sold under repurchase agreement, 
brokered CDs, and medium- and long-term debt.  Wholesale funding activities are governed by the Bank’s ALCO, which 
establishes policies and guidelines to diversify funding sources and avoid borrowing concentrations from any one market 
source.  
 

Other sources of liquidity include the sale of investment securities, the sale or securitization of loans, collateralized 
borrowings such as Federal Home Loan Bank advances, and the issuance of common and preferred securities in the capital 
markets.  Huntington also has available a $6.0 billion domestic bank note program through its bank subsidiary, Huntington 
National Bank, of which $5.1 billion was available at March 31, 2003.  In addition, the Bank shares a $2.0 billion Euronote 
program with the parent company, of which $1.2 billion was available on March 31, 2003. Also, the parent company has 
$295 million availability under a $750 million medium term note program as of the same date. 
 
CAPITAL 
 

Capital is managed at each legal subsidiary based upon the respective risks and growth opportunities, as well as 
regulatory requirements. Huntington places significant emphasis on the maintenance of strong capital, which promotes 
investor confidence, provides access to the national markets under favorable terms, and enhances business growth and 
acquisition opportunities. The importance of managing capital is also recognized and management continually strives to 
maintain an appropriate balance between capital adequacy and returns to shareholders.  
 

Shareholder’s equity declined $34 million during the first quarter of 2003 from the end of 2002, and $190 million 
from March 31, 2002.  The primary driver of these declines was the repurchase of 4.3 million common shares at a value of  
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$79.1 million.  The 4.3 million shares repurchased consisted of 0.2 million under the February 2002 authorization, 
subsequently cancelled, plus 4.1 million under the existing January 2003 authorization.   

 
In February 2002, the Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program for up to 22 million shares and 

canceled the previously existing authorization.  Under this authorization a total of 19.4 million shares were repurchased: 
19.2 million in 2002, including 1.5 million shares purchased in the year-ago quarter, and 0.2 million in the 2003 first 
quarter.  In mid-January 2003, the Board of Directors authorized a new share repurchase program, canceling the 2.6 million 
shares remaining under the February 2002 authorization, and approved a new share repurchase authorization for up to 8 
million shares.  Under this authorization 4.1 million shares were repurchased in the 2003 first quarter, leaving 3.9 million 
shares remaining for repurchase.   
 

The ratio of average equity to average assets in the first quarter of 2003 was 8.17% versus 8.97% last year. 
Tangible period-end equity to period-end assets, which excludes intangible assets, was 7.36% at the end of March 2003, 
down significantly from 9.11% a year earlier. The high year-ago tangible equity to asset ratio in the year-ago quarter 
reflected the capital generated from the sale of the Florida operations.  The decline in the tangible equity to asset ratio from 
the year-ago quarter reflected the subsequent share repurchase program activity.  Given the current asset mix and risk 
profile, management has a longer-term targeted tangible equity to asset ratio of 7.00%. 
 

Risk-based capital guidelines established by the Federal Reserve Board set minimum capital requirements and 
require institutions to calculate risk-based capital ratios by assigning risk weightings to assets and off-balance sheet items, 
such as interest rate swaps, loan commitments, and securitizations. These guidelines further define "well-capitalized" levels 
for Tier 1, total capital, and leverage ratio purposes at 6%, 10%, and 5%, respectively. Huntington’s Tier 1 risk-based 
capital ratio, total risk-based capital ratio, leverage ratio, risk-adjusted assets, and its tangible equity to assets ratio for the 
recent five quarters are shown in Table 12: 
 
Table 12 - Capital Data

 2003
(in millions)  First Fourth Third Second First

 
Total risk-adjusted assets  27,316$   27,215$    26,341$   25,317$   24,974$   

  
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio  8.54% 8.65%  9.13% 9.74% 10.30%
Total risk-based capital ratio  11.42% 11.54%  12.09% 12.76% 13.43%
Tier 1 leverage ratio  8.58% 8.85%  9.41% 9.95% 9.76%

Tangible equity / asset ratio 7.36% 7.58% 7.99% 8.52% 9.11%

2002

 
As Huntington is supervised and regulated by the Federal Reserve, The Huntington National Bank, Huntington’s 

bank subsidiary, is supervised and regulated by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, which establishes similar 
regulatory capital guidelines for banks. The Bank also had regulatory capital ratios in excess of the levels established for 
well-capitalized institutions. 

 
Table 13 details the cash dividends that were declared in the first quarter 2003 and four prior quarters along with 

common stock prices (based on NASDAQ intra-day and closing stock price quotes): 
Table 13 - Quarterly Stock Summary

2003
First Fourth Third Second First

High  19.800$     19.980$    20.430$    21.770$    20.310$    
Low  17.780       16.160      16.000      18.590      16.660      
Close  18.590       18.710      18.190      19.420      19.700      
Average daily closing price 18.876       18.769      19.142      20.089      18.332      
Cash dividends declared  0.16$         0.16$        0.16$        0.16$        0.16$        

2002
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LINES OF BUSINESS DISCUSSION 
 

Below is a brief description of each line of business and a discussion of business segment results for the quarters 
ending March 31, 2003 and 2002. Regional Banking, Dealer Sales, and the Private Financial Group are the major business 
lines. The fourth segment includes the impact of the Treasury function and other unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue, and 
expense.  
 
 For analytical purposes in understanding performance trends, strategic decision making, determining incentive 
compensation, and evaluating line of business performance, chief decision-makers review and analyze certain data on an 
“operating basis”, which excludes the impact of restructuring charges and other items, as well as the results of operations 
from the Florida banking and insurance operations sold in 2002.  Since the items excluded are associated with exited 
businesses and/or restructurings that have been completed and no longer contribute to current or future period performance, 
management believes their exclusion for analytical purposes provides a clearer picture of underlying performance trends, as 
well as progress made in improving the company’s financial performance. 
 
 See Operating Basis discussion on page 41, and Tables 18 and 19 for further discussion, as well as Note 11 
beginning on page 15 for a reconciliation of line of business results on an operating basis, to a GAAP basis.  
  
Regional Banking 

Regional Banking provides products and services to retail, business banking, and commercial customers. This 
segment’s products include home equity loans, first mortgage loans, direct installment loans, business loans, personal and 
business deposit products, as well as sales of investment and insurance services. These products and services are offered in 
six operating regions within the five states of Ohio, Michigan, Indiana, West Virginia, and Kentucky through Huntington’s 
traditional banking network, Direct Bank—Huntington’s customer service center, and Web Bank at www.huntington.com. 
Regional Banking also represents middle-market and large commercial banking relationships which use a variety of 
banking products and services including, but not limited to, commercial loans, international trade, and cash management. 
 

Table 14 - Regional Banking

(in thousands of dollars) 2003 2002

Net interest income 148,542$   144,693$   
Provision for loan and lease losses 23,542       23,276       
Non-interest income 75,361       71,218       
Non-interest expense 144,989     133,221     
     Income before taxes 55,372       59,414       
Income taxes 19,381       20,886       
Operating income 35,991$     38,528$     

Three Months Ended
March 31,

 
 

Regional Banking operating income in the first quarter of 2003 was $36.0 million, compared with $38.5 million 
for the same quarter a year ago.  Increased revenue resulting from balance sheet growth and fee-based revenue was more 
than offset by higher expenses. 
 

Net interest income was up $3.8 million, or 3%.  The improvement in 2003 net interest income was attributed to a 
7% growth in loans and leases, a 9% growth in loan fees and a 2% increase in deposits.  The favorable impact of higher 
deposit balances was offset by declining funding rates paid on deposits.  
 

The average loan and lease balances increase of 7% in 2003 reflected an increase in consumer loans of 22%, 
which was partially offset by a 1% decline in commercial average balances.  Average residential mo rtgage loans and home 
equity loans and lines of credit increased 56% and 23%, respectively, from the year-ago quarter, reflecting strong growth in 
the mortgage refinance business.  Average total deposits were up $682 million in the current quarter, or 5%, from the 2002 
first quarter. Total deposits (excluding time) grew at a rate of 14% over prior year quarter and 3% over the fourth quarter of 
2002. 
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The provision for loan and lease losses for the first quarter of 2003 increased $0.3 million, or 1%, over the same 
quarter last year. This increase reflected loan growth, which was partially offset by a decline in net charge-offs. Net charge-
offs in the first quarter of 2003 were $20.4 million compared to $24.4 million for the prior year’s first quarter.  
 

Non-interest income for the recent three months was up $4.1 million, or 6%, from the first quarter of last year.  
Increased fee-based revenue was driven by deposit service charges, electronic banking, and partnership fee sharing revenue. 
These increases were partially offset by declines in mortgage banking income attributed to higher amortization of mortgage 
servicing rights, and lower standby letters of credit fee income.  The decline in standby letters of credit was due to the 
adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 45. 
 

Non-interest expense for the 2003 first quarter increased $11.8 million, or 9%, from the 2002 first quarter.  This 
increase was driven primarily by higher salaries and benefits, occupancy, and equipment expenses.  Increased salaries and 
benefits reflect investment in the line’s management team and increases in performance-based incentive compensation.  
Partially offsetting these increases were decreases in marketing and a 33% decline in operating losses. 
 

Regional Banking contributed 47% of total revenues and 41% of net income in the first quarter of 2003 and 
represented 51% of total assets  and 87% of total deposits at March 31, 2003. 
 
Dealer Sales 

Dealer Sales serves automotive dealerships within Huntington's primary banking markets, as well as in Arizona, 
Florida, Georgia, Pennsylvania, and Tennessee.  This segment finances the purchase of automobiles by customers of the 
automotive dealerships, purchases automobiles from dealers and simultaneously leases the automobile under long-term 
operating and direct financing leases, finances the dealership's inventory of automobiles, and provides other banking 
services to the automotive dealerships and their owners. 

Table 15 - Dealer Sales

(in thousands of dollars) 2003 2002

Net interest income 23,067$     (7,210)$      
Provision for loan and lease losses 11,389       8,961         
Non-interest income 149,655     180,218     
Non-interest expense 135,279     161,236     
     Income before taxes 26,054       2,811         
Income taxes 9,119         984            
Operating income 16,935$     1,827$       

Three Months Ended
March 31,

 
 

Dealer Sales operating income was $16.9 million in the first quarter of 2003, compared to $1.8 million for the 
year-ago quarter. This increase was attributed to growth in the auto loan and lease portfolios.  
 

Dealer Sales financial results are significantly impacted by accounting for automobile leases.  As discussed in 
Note 3 to Huntington’s unaudited consolidated financial statements, leases originated prior to May 2002 are accounted for 
as operating leases, and leases originated since April 2002 are accounted for as direct financing leases.  Therefore, for 
automobile leases originated prior to May 2002, the related financial results are reported in non-interest income and non-
interest expense, and there were no loan loss provisions.  Net interest income was negative for the Dealer Sales line of 
business during these periods since the cost of funding these leases was included in interest expense while the related 
revenue was not shown in interest income.  Since April 2002, revenue from new direct financing lease originations is 
reported in interest income and loan and lease loss provision is recorded in order to maintain the appropriate level of 
reserve for loan and lease losses.  Non-interest income and non-interest expense will continue to trend lower in subsequent 
periods since new leases are not treated as operating leases, and will continue to run-off. As a result, non-interest income 
and expense will continue to decline, while net interest income and provision for loan and lease losses will increase.  
Huntington expects net interest income for the Dealer Sales line of business to be positive in future periods. 
 

Dealer Sales increased its loan and lease average outstandings from $2.8 billion in the first quarter of 2002 to $4.1 
billion in the first quarter of 2003, reflecting higher loan and direct financing lease origination volume that totaled $1.0 
billion in the 2003 first quarter compared with $0.5 billion for the same period a year ago. Over the same period, operating 
lease assets declined from $3.0 billion to $2.1 billion. 
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              Dealer Sales contributed 36% of total revenue and 19% of net income and represented 25% of total assets at March 
31, 2003. 
 
Private Financial Group (PFG) 

PFG provides products and services designed to meet the needs of Huntington’s higher wealth customers. Revenue 
is derived through the sale of personal trust, asset management, investment advisory, brokerage, insurance, and deposit and 
loan products and services. Income and related expenses from the sale of brokerage and insurance products is shared with 
the line of business that generated the sale or provided the customer referral. 

Table 16 - Private Financial Group

(in thousands of dollars) 2003 2002

Net interest income 9,516$       7,777$       
Provision for loan losses 1,913         1,587         
Non-interest income 27,210       30,036       
Non-interest expense 26,616       24,200       
     Income before taxes 8,197         12,026       
Income taxes 2,869         4,329         
Operating income 5,328$       7,697$       

Three Months Ended
March 31,

 
 
 PFG operating income in the first quarter of 2003 was $5.3 million, which represented a 31% decline from the first 
quarter of 2002, most of which was due to a change in methodology in revenue sharing on investment product sales which 
resulted in an additional $1.6 million in brokerage revenue shared with Regional Banking. Application of the same 
methodology used in the first quarter 2002 to the 2003 first quarter would have increased first quarter 2003 operating 
income to $6.4 million, which would have represented a 17% decrease from the first quarter 2002. 
 
 Net interest income increased $1.7 million, or 22%, from the year-ago quarter as average loan balances increased 
42%, to $1.1 billion, and average deposit balances increased 30% to $887 million.  Most of the loan growth occurred in 
personal credit lines and residential real estate loans largely due to the favorable mortgage rate environment.  Most of the 
deposit growth occurred in the personal management accounts, which resulted from a combination of new business and a 
customer shift in sweep options from the Huntington Funds money market funds to money market deposit accounts, and 
growth in the premier money market account due to favorable rate offerings. The significant growth in loans more than 
offset margin erosion from declining market interest rates. 
 
 Provision for loan losses was $1.9 million for the current quarter compared with $1.6 million for the same period a 
year ago. Net charge-offs were $0.5 million for the first three months of 2003 versus no net charge-offs for last year’s first 
quarter.  
 
 Non-interest income decreased $2.8 million, or 9%, from the year-ago quarter.  The decrease resulted primarily 
from $0.3 million in higher brokerage revenue and $0.3 million in higher insurance revenue.  Before revenue sharing, total 
brokerage revenue increased by $1.9 million, or 20%, as a result of record annuity sales of $174 million in the 2003 first 
quarter. The increase in insurance revenue resulted mainly from an increase in title insurance revenue reflective of 
increased customer mortgage loan refinancing. Trust revenue increased $0.1 million, or 1%, reflecting revenue resulting 
from the Haberer acquisition in the year-ago second quarter, mostly offset by a 5% revenue decline due to reduced asset 
values reflective of the stock market decline.  
 
 Non-interest expense increased $2.4 million, or 10%, from the year-ago quarter primarily due to increased 
personnel expense of $3.4 million.  The increased personnel expense included the impact of the 2002 second quarter 
Haberer acquisition and an increase in the number of private banking and investment sales associates, which helped 
produce higher loans and leases, deposits and annuity sales volume. 
 
 PFG contributed 8% of total revenues and 6% of net income in the first quarter of 2003 and represented 5% of 
both total assets  and total deposits at March 31, 2003. 
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Treasury / Other 
The Treasury / Other segment includes assets, liabilities, equity, revenue, and expense not directly assigned or 

allocated to one of the lines of business. Since a match-funded transfer pricing system is used to allocate interest income 
and interest expense to other business segments, Treasury / Other results include the net impact of any over or under 
allocations arising from centralized management of interest rate risk including the net impact of derivatives used to hedge 
interest rate sensitivity. Furthermore, this segment’s results include the net impact of administering Huntington’s 
investment securities portfolio as part of overall liquidity management. Additionally, amortization expense of intangible 
assets and gains or losses not allocated to other business segments are also a component. 

Table 17- Treasury / Other

(in thousands of dollars) 2003 2002

Net interest income 31,504$     29,447$     
Provision for loan losses ---              ---              
Non-interest income 15,329       11,651       
Non-interest expense 15,601       13,498       
     Income before taxes 31,232       27,600       
Income taxes 654            725            
Operating income 30,578$     26,875$     

Three Months Ended
March 31,

 
 

Treasury / Other’s operating income was $30.6 million in the first quarter of 2003, up from last year’s first quarter 
of $26.9 million. Net interest income rose $2.1 million largely due to offsetting items within Treasury. Declining interest 
rates caused a substantial decline in the cost of funds charged on loans and leases and investments, which was offset by a 
corresponding decline in the funding credit paid to deposit providers, most notably Regional Banking. A one-time transfer 
pricing charge was made to the indirect auto line of business for the early termination of funding related to the 
aforementioned March 2003 sale of automobile loans. 
  

Non-interest income for 2003 first quarter was $15.3 million compared with $11.7 million for the same period last 
year. Non-interest expense for the current quarter increased $2.1 million from the 2002 first quarter. This increase reflected 
slightly higher personnel costs.  
  

Income tax expense for each of the other business segments is calculated at a statutory 35% tax rate. However, 
Huntington’s overall effective tax rate was lower and, as a result, Treasury / Other reflected the reconciling items to the 
statutory tax rate in its income taxes. 



 41 

 
OPERATING BASIS – 2002 FIRST QUARTER RECONCILIATION TO GAAP RESULTS 
 
 Results in the 2002 first quarter were impacted by a number of items related to Huntington’s strategic initiatives 
announced in July 2001, primarily the plan to sell the Florida banking and insurance operations.  The sale of the Florida 
banking operations, which included 143 banking offices, 456 ATMs and $2.5 billion in loans and other tangible assets and 
$4.8 billion in deposits and other liabilities, was completed on February 15, 2002.  The year-ago quarter’s results included a 
gain from the sale of the Florida banking operations, operating results from the Florida banking operations through its sale 
in mid-February, as well as restructuring charges.  The sale of the J. Rolfe Davis Insurance Agency, Inc., Huntington’s 
Florida-based insurance operations, was completed on July 2, 2002.  As such, the year-ago quarter represented the last full 
quarter’s worth of non-interest income and non-interest expense associated with this business.  The financial impact on 
2002 first quarter results included: 
 

• Items related to the sold Florida banking operations  

$175.3 million pre-tax gain ($56.7 million after tax,  or $0.23 per common share) from the sale 

$4.1 million pre-tax loss from operations ($2.7 after tax loss, or $0.01 loss per common share) 

$1.4 billion reduction in average loans in the quarter from the loans sold 

$2.4 billion reduction in average deposits in the quarter from the deposits sold 

• Items related to the sold Florida insurance operations  

$3.5 million pre-tax of non-interest income 

$2.6 million pre-tax of non-interest expense 

• $56.2 million pre-tax ($36.5 million after tax, or $0.14 per common share) in restructuring charges  

 
 Since these items are associated with exited businesses and/or restructurings that have been completed and no 
longer contribute to current or future period financial performance, management believes that excluding their impact from 
the year-ago quarter provides a clearer picture of underlying performance and trends, as well as the progress made in 
improving financial performance.  Financial performance in the year-ago quarter that excludes the impact of these items 
from GAAP results is referred to as performance on an “operating basis”.  It is on this operating basis that management 
evaluates performance and analyzes certain data, including Line of Business performance, for making strategic decisions 
and determining incentive compensation. 
 

Please refer to Table 18 for a reconciliation of 2002 first quarter performance on a GAAP basis to an operating 
basis for selected income statement data and performance ratios, and to Table 19 for a similar reconciliation for selected 
average balance sheet items.  Also, please refer to Huntington’s amended 2002 Annual Report for further detailed 
discussion of the impact of the 2001 strategic refocusing plan. 
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Table 18 - Selected 2002 First Quarter Income Statement Data - Reconciliation of GAAP to Operating Basis  

(1)  See "Operating Basis – 2002 First Quarter Reconciliation to GAAP Results” discussion on page 41 for details. 
(2)  Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate. 
(3)  Non-interest expense excluding restructuring charges, divided by fully taxable equivalent revenue less securities gains 
and significant non-operating gains. 

(in thousands, except per share amounts) Three Months Ended March 31, 2002

GAAP Sold Florida Operations Operating

Basis  & Other Items (1) Basis

Net Interest Income 184,431$            9,724$                        174,707$            
Provision for loan and lease losses 39,010                5,186                          33,824                
Net Interest Income After Provision

  for Loan and Lease Losses 145,421              4,538                          140,883              
Operating lease income 175,906              --- 175,906              
Service charges on deposit accounts 38,530                4,248                          34,282                
Brokerage and insurance income 17,605                4,205                          13,400                
Trust services 15,501                405                             15,096                
Mortgage banking 19,565                (79)                              19,644                
Bank Owned Life Insurance income 11,676                --- 11,676                
Other service charges and fees 10,632                1,514                          9,118                  
Gain on sale of Florida operations 175,344              175,344                      ---                    
Securities gains 457                     --- 457                     
Other 13,884                340                             13,544                
Total Non-Interest Income 479,100              185,977                      293,123              
Operating lease expense 140,785              --- 140,785              
Personnel costs 114,285              9,965                          104,320              
Net occupancy 17,239                2,468                          14,771                
Outside data processing and other services 18,439                1,342                          17,097                
Equipment 16,949                1,367                          15,582                
Marketing 7,003                  (171)                            7,174                  
Professional services 5,401                  159                             5,242                  
Telecommunications 6,018                  736                             5,282                  
Printing and supplies 3,837                  318                             3,519                  
Restructuring charges 56,184                56,184                        ---                    
Other 20,534                2,151                          18,383                
Total Non-Interest Expense 406,674              74,519                        332,155              
Income Before Income Taxes 217,847              115,996                      101,851              
Income taxes 124,706              97,782                        26,924                
Net Income 93,141$              18,214$                      74,927$              

Net Income Per Common Share - Diluted $0.37 $0.07 $0.30

Return on average total assets 1.42                    % 1.22                    %
Return on average total shareholders' equity 15.8                    12.7                    
Net interest margin 

(2)
3.63                    3.69                    

Efficiency ratio 
(3)

71.4                    70.8                    
Effective tax rate 57.2                    26.4                    

Net Interest Income 184,431$            9,724$                        174,707$            
Tax Equivalent Adjustment 

(2)
1,169                  --- 1,169                  

Net Interest Income - FTE 185,600              9,724                          175,876              
Non-Interest Income 479,100              185,977                      293,123              
Total Revenue - FTE 664,700$            195,701$                    468,999$            

Total Revenue - FTE Excluding Securities Gains 664,243$            195,701$                    468,542$            
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Table 19 - Selected 2002 First Quarter Average Balance Sheet Data - Reconciliation of GAAP to Operating Basis 
 

(in millions) Three Months Ended March 31, 2002

GAAP Sold Florida Operations Operating

Basis  & Other Items (1) Basis

Selected Assets

Interest bearing deposits in banks 34$           -$       34$           
Trading account securities 5 --- 5
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 62 --- 62
Mortgages held for sale 381 --- 381
Securities:
      Taxable 2,713 --- 2,713
      Tax exempt 101 (1) 102
           Total Securities 2,814 (1) 2,815

Loans and leases: 
(2)

     Commercial 6,045 384 5,661
     Real Estate
          Construction 1,291 50 1,241
          Commercial 2,364 168 2,196
               Total commercial real estate 3,655 218 3,437
     Consumer
           Automobile loans and leases 2,822 171 2,651
           Home equity 3,209 421 2,788
           Residential mortgage 1,185 117 1,068
           Other loans 482 58 424
           Total Consumer 7,698 767 6,931
Total loans and leases 17,398      1,369      16,029      
Allowance for loan and lease losses 371 11 360

Net loans and leases 17,027 1,358 15,669
Total earning assets 20,694 1,368 19,326

Operating lease assets 3,041        --- 3,041        

Deposits

Core deposits
     Non-interest bearing deposits 3,041$      303$       2,738$      
     Interest bearing demand deposits 5,148 786 4,362
     Savings deposits 3,097 267 2,830
     Other domestic time deposits 5,015 918 4,097
          Total core deposits 16,301 2,274      14,027

Domestic time deposits of $100,000 or more 1,052 93 959
Brokered time deposits and negotiable CDs 302 0 302
Foreign time deposits 270 2 268
     Total deposits 17,925$    2,369$   15,556$    

 
(1)  See "Operating Basis – 2002 First Quarter Reconciliation to GAAP Results” discussion on page 41 for details. 
(2) Individual loan and lease components include applicable fees. 
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Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 
 

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures for the current period are found beginning on page 33 of this report, 
which includes changes in market risk exposures from disclosures presented in Huntington’s amended 2002 
Annual Report. 
 
 
Item 4.  Controls and Procedures 
 

On May 19, 2003, Huntington carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of 
its management, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) along with the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), of 
the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act 
Rule 13a-14.  Based upon that evaluation, the CEO along with the CFO concluded that Huntington’s disclosure 
controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting the CEO and CFO to material information relating to 
Huntington (including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in its periodic SEC filings. 
 

There have been no significant changes in Huntington’s internal controls or in other factors that could 
significantly affect its internal controls subsequent to the date it carried out this evaluation. 
 
PART II.  OTHER INFORMATION 
 
In accordance with the instructions to Part II, the other specified items in this part have been omitted because 
they are not applicable or the information has been previously reported. 
 
Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 
 
  (a) Exhibits 
 

3. (i)(a).  Articles of Restatement of Charter, Articles of Amendment to Articles of  
      Restatement of Charter, and Articles Supplementary – previously filed as  
      Exhibit 3(i) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December  
      31, 1993, and incorporated herein by reference.  
   

           (i)(b).  Articles of Amendment to Articles of Restatement of Charter – previously  
        filed as Exhibit 3(i)(c) to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter  
        ended March 31, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
                   (ii).      Amended and Restated Bylaws as of July 16, 2002 – previously filed as  
        Exhibit 3(ii) to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June  
        30, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

4. Instruments defining the Rights of Security Holders: 
 

Reference is made to Articles Fifth, Eighth and Tenth of Articles of Restatement of 
Charter, as amended and supplemented, previously filed as exhibit 3(i) to annual report 
on form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993 and exhibit 3(i)(c) to quarterly 
report on form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1998, and incorporated herein by 
reference.  Also, reference is made to Rights Plan, dated February 22, 1990, previously 
filed as Exhibit 1 to Registration Statement on Form 8-A, and incorporated herein by 
reference and to Amendment No. 1 to the Rights Agreement, dated as of August 16, 
1995, previously filed as Exhibit 4(b) to Form 8-K filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on August 28, 1995, and incorporated herein by reference.  
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Instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt will be furnished to the 
Securities and Exchange Commission upon request. 

 
10. Material contracts: 

 
(a) * Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation Plan for Huntington 

Bancshares Incorporated  
 
  99.1. Earnings to Fixed Charges 
 

99.2 Chief Executive Officer Certification 
 

99.3 Chief Financial Officer Certfication 
 
 (b) Reports on Form 8-K 
 

1. A report on Form 8-K, dated January 7, 2003, was filed under report item numbers 5 and 7, 
announcing credit actions taken in the fourth quarter of 2002. These included the sale of 
$47 million in non-performing loans with $21 million in incremental charge-offs and a $30 
million charge-off, or 100% of the credit exposure associated with one customer in the 
health care finance business that was previously disclosed as a non-performing loan in 
November 2002.  

 
2. A report on Form 8-K, dated January 16, 2003, was filed under report item numbers  

5 and 7, concerning Huntington’s results of operations for the fourth quarter and year ended 
December 31, 2002.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
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SIGNATURES 
 
 
 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
 

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated 
(Registrant) 

 
 
 
       
Date: May 20, 2003         /s/ Thomas E. Hoaglin    
                                                        Thomas E. Hoaglin 
                       Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and  
            President 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 20, 2003        /s/ Michael J. McMennamin     
                                            Michael J. McMennamin 

               Vice Chairman, Chief Financial Officer and  
     Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer) 
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CERTIFICATION 
 

 
I, Thomas E. Hoaglin, certify that: 
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated; 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material 

fact or o mit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this quarterly report; 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 

quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations, 
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report; 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the 
registrant and we have: 

 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information 

relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is 
being prepared; 

 
b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a 

date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the “Evaluation 
Date”); and 

 
c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure 

controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date; 
 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, 
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent function): 

 
a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could 

adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial 
data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal 
controls; and 

 
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who 

have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and 
 

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or 
not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly 
affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any 
corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

 
 

Date:  May 20, 2003    
 

/s/ Thomas E. Hoaglin     
     Thomas E. Hoaglin 
     Chief Executive Officer 
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CERTIFICATION 
 

 
I, Michael J. McMennamin, certify that: 
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated; 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material 

fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this quarterly report; 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 

quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations, 
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report; 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the 
registrant and we have: 

 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information 

relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is 
being prepared; 

 
b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a 

date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the “Evaluation 
Date”); and 

 
c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure 

controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date; 
 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, 
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent function): 

 
a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could 

adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial 
data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal 
controls; and 

 
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who 

have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and 
 

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or 
not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly 
affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any 
corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

 
 

Date:  May 20, 2003    
 

/s/ Michael J. McMcMennamin   
     Michael J. McMennamin 
     Chief Financial Officer 
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 EXECUTIVE DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 OF HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPORATED 
 
 
 INTRODUCTION 
 
 
This Executive Deferred Compensation Plan of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated is 

authorized by the Board of Directors of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated effective on and 

after October 1, 2001. The purpose of this Plan is to provide a means to defer receipt of 

compensation and current income tax liability thereon for selected managers and highly 

compensated employees in addition to the amounts that can be deferred under the Corporation's 

qualified retirement plan. 

 

This Plan is intended to constitute a nonqualified unfunded deferred compensation plan for a 

select group of management or highly compensated employees under Title I of the ERISA.  All 

benefits payable under the Plan shall be paid out of the general assets of Huntington Bancshares 

Incorporated.  Huntington Bancshares Incorporated may establish and fund a trust as provided 

herein in order to aid it in providing benefits due under the Plan.
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 EXECUTIVE DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 OF HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPORATED 
 
 
ARTICLE 1.  DEFINITIONS 

1.01 "Accounts" means the device used to measure and determine the amount of deferred 

compensation to be paid to a Member or Beneficiary under the Plan and may include the 

Cash Deferral Account, the Common Stock Deferral Account, and the Stock Option 

Deferral Account. 

 

1.02 "Beneficiary" means the individual, trust or other recipient to whom a deceased 

Member's benefits are payable, as provided in Section 4.07. 

 

1.03 "Bonus" means any annual bonus or other similar bonus payable to an Eligible 

Employee and any other bonus payable to an Eligible Employee and designated by the 

Corporation through other program documents or otherwise as eligible for deferral under 

this Plan. 

 

1.04 "Bonus Deferral Agreement" means the agreement entered into by the Member 

pursuant to Section 2.02 under which he elects to defer all or a portion of his Bonus 

under this Plan. 

 

1.05 "Bonus Deferrals" means the amount of contributions credited to a Member's Accounts 

under Section 3.01, with respect to his Bonus. 
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1.06 "Cash Deferral Account" means the account credited with Salary Deferrals, cash 

Bonus Deferrals and cash Long-Term Incentive Deferrals and the earnings credited to 

that Account pursuant to Section 3.03. 

 

1.07 "Change in Control" means the events described in Section 5.01. 

 

1.08 "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time. 

 

1.09 "Common Stock" means the Huntington Bancshares Incorporated common stock with 

no par value per share. 

 

1.10 "Common Stock Deferred Account" means the account credited with Common Stock 

from deferred Common Stock in relation to Bonus Deferrals, Long-term Incentive 

Deferrals and Restricted Stock Deferrals and the dividend equivalents with respect to the 

Common Stock credited to that Account pursuant to Section 3.03. 

 

1.11 "Compensation" means base salary or commissions earned by an Eligible Employee  

from the Corporation for each payroll period during a Plan Year, including any salary 

reduction contributions made under any plan maintained by the Corporation pursuant to 

Sections 401(k), 125 and 132(f) of the Code. 

 

1.12 "Compensation Committee" means the Compensation and Stock Option Committee of 

the Board of Directors of the Corporation. 
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1.13 ”Corporation" means Huntington Bancshares Incorporated, a Maryland corporation, 

together with any and all subsidiaries, and any successor thereto as provided in Section 

6.13.    A subsidiary or subsidiaries means any corporation or other entity whose financial 

statements are consolidated with the Corporation. 

 

1.14 "Deferrals" means collectively the Salary, Bonus, Long-Term Incentive, Restricted Stock 

and Net Shares, unless indicated otherwise. 

 

1.15 "Distribution Election Form" means the form or forms completed by a Member to elect 

alternative payment options and/or alternative payout timing. 

 

1.16 "Effective Date" means October 1, 2001. 

 

1.17 "Eligible Employee" means a manager or highly compensated employee of the 

Corporation who has been selected by the Compensation Committee or its delegate to 

participate in this Plan as described in Section 2.01. 

 

1.18 "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended 

from time to time. 

 

1.19 ”Investment Funds" mean such investment funds that the Corporation may, in its 

discretion, make available in determining the earnings (or losses) on a Member's Cash 

Deferrals. 
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1.20 "Long-Term Incentive" means any long-term award payable to an Eligible Employee by 

the Corporation and designated by the Corporation through other program documents or 

otherwise as eligible for deferral under this Plan. 

 

1.21 ”Long-Term Incentive Deferral Agreement" means the agreement entered into by the 

Member pursuant to Section 2.02 under which he elects to defer all or a portion of his 

Long-Term Incentive under this Plan. 

 

1.22 "Long-Term Incentive Deferrals" means the amount of contributions credited to a 

Member's Accounts under Section 3.01, with respect to his Long-Term Incentive. 

 

1.23 "Member" means each Eligible Employee who has made the election described in 

Section 2.02. 

 

1.24 "Net Shares" with respect to an election made pursuant to Section 3.02, means the 

difference between the number of shares of Common Stock subject to the stock option 

exercise and the number of shares of Common Stock delivered to satisfy the stock 

option exercise price, less any shares used to satisfy FICA or any other taxes due upon 

the option exercise as may be designated by the Corporation. 

 

1.25 "Plan" means the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan of Huntington Bancshares 

Incorporated. 
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1.26 "Plan Year" means the twelve (12)-month period beginning on any January 1; the first 

Plan Year shall begin October 1, 2001 and ends December 31, 2001. 

 

1.27 "Restricted Stock Award" means any restricted stock awards of Common Stock 

payable to an Eligible Employee by the Corporation and designated by the Corporation 

through a restricted stock award document or otherwise as eligible for deferral under this 

Plan. 

 

1.28 "Restricted Stock Deferral Agreement" means the agreement entered into by the 

Member pursuant to Section 2.02 under which he elects to defer all or a portion of his 

Restricted Stock Award under the Plan. 

 

1.29 "Restricted Stock Deferrals" means the amount of contributions credited to a 

Member's Accounts under Section 3.01, with respect to his Restricted Stock Award. 

 

1.30 "Salary Deferral Agreement" means the agreement entered into by the Member 

pursuant to Section 2.02 under which he elects to defer all or a portion of his Compensa-

tion under this Plan. 

 

1.31 "Salary Deferrals" means the amount of contributions credited to a Member's Account 

under Section 3.01, with respect to his Compensation. 

 

1.32 "Stock Option Deferral Account" means the account credited with the deferred Net 

Shares and the dividend equivalents with respect to those Net Shares credited to that 

Account pursuant to Section 3.03. 
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1.33 "Stock Option Deferral Agreement" means the agreement entered into by the Member 

pursuant to Section 2.02 under which he elects to defer all or a portion of his Net Shares 

under this Plan. 

 

1.34 "Stock Option Deferrals" means the amount of contributions credited to a Member's 

Accounts under Section 3.01, with respect to his Net Shares. 

 

1.35 "Trust" means the trust that may be established by the Corporation as provided in 

Section 6.02(b). 

 

1.36 "Valuation Date" means the last business day of each calendar month.  All distributions 

under the Plan shall be based upon the value of the Member's Accounts as of the 

Valuation Date specified in Article 4 with respect to the distribution and shall include any 

contributions made by a Member, but not yet credited to the Member's Accounts. 
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ARTICLE 2.  PARTICIPATION 

2.01 Eligibility 

 (a) In addition to a designation of eligibility to participate in this Plan contained in other 

Corporation programs for its managers and highly compensated employees, the 

Compensation Committee or its delegate, in its sole discretion, shall select from 

time-to-time either individually or by class, those managers and highly 

compensated employees of the Corporation who shall be eligible to participate in 

this Plan under Section 2.02.  The Compensation Committee may select different 

employees or classes of employees to participate in the various Deferrals.  The 

Compensation Committee shall make its selection from those managers and 

highly compensated employees who it deems to be in a select group of manage-

ment or highly compensated employees as defined under Title I of ERISA.  Said 

employees shall be notified of their eligibility for participation in the Plan by the 

Corporation as soon as practicable after the Compensation Committee has made 

its selection and, for purposes of authorizing any Deferrals under Section 3.01, in 

any event prior to the first day of eligibility after said employee is designated an 

Eligible Employee.  An Eligible Employee may become a Member for any or all 

Deferrals he is eligible for under Section 3.01. 

 (b) In its sole discretion, the Compensation Committee may withdraw its approval for 

participation in the Plan for any Member at any time with respect to any future 

deferral opportunity whether or not a deferral election has been made by the 

Member.  In the event of such withdrawal, the Member with existing Accounts will 

remain a Member in relation to the right to direct investment and elect distribution 

options from those Accounts.  Such Member shall be notified of such withdrawal 

in writing as soon as practicable following such action.  
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                        Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event a Change in Control occurs, the 

Compensation Committee may not thereafter withdraw its participation approval 

for any Member.   

 

2.02 Participation 

 (a) Initial Plan Year.   

  (i) Salary Deferrals will be available beginning in 2002 and to be effective 

must be made by an Eligible Employee by executing and delivering to the 

Corporation a Salary Deferral Agreement by December 31, 2001. The 

Salary Deferral Agreement shall apply to Compensation earned by the 

Eligible Employee in the payroll periods beginning after December 31, 

2001. 

  (ii) An election to become a Member and authorize a Bonus Deferral to be 

effective for a 2001 Bonus (payable in 2002) must be made by an Eligible 

Employee, by executing and delivering to the Corporation, an irrevocable 

Bonus Deferral Agreement by December 31, 2001. 

  (iii) An election to become a Member and authorize a Long-Term Incentive 

Deferral to be effective for cycle eight (8) payments ending on 

December 31, 2002 payable in 2003 must be made by the Eligible 

Employee by executing and delivering to the Corporation an irrevocable 

Long-term Incentive Deferral Agreement as provided in Section 2.02(b)(iii). 

  (iv) Stock Option Deferral will be available beginning in 2003 and to be 

effective must be made by an Eligible Employee by executing and 

delivering to the Corporation a Stock Option Deferral Agreement as 

provided in Section 2.02(b)(iv).   
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 (b) Initial Participation for 2002 Plan Year and Thereafter.   

  (i) In the case of a newly hired Eligible Employee or an employee who first 

becomes an Eligible Employee during a Plan Year, that Eligible Employee 

must execute and deliver to the Corporation a Salary Deferral Agreement 

within 30 days of notification of eligibility to participate in the Plan.  Salary 

Deferrals will begin in the first full payroll period following receipt of the 

Salary Deferral Agreement.  

  (ii) For purposes of Bonus Deferrals, the initial irrevocable Bonus Deferral 

Agreement must be executed and delivered to the Corporation before the 

later of the date established for current Members to submit their Plan Year 

Bonus Deferral Agreement or thirty (30) days after being designated an 

Eligible Employee, to apply to the Bonus attributable to that Plan Year, 

which becomes payable in the next following Plan Year.   The Bonus 

Deferral Agreement for subsequent Plan Years may be changed in 

accordance with the procedures in paragraph (c)(ii) below.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in relation to any other bonus, the 

irrevocable Bonus Deferral Agreement must be made at such time and in 

such manner as established by the Corporation in its discretion. 

  (iii) For purposes of Long-Term Incentive Deferrals and for Restricted 

Stock Deferrals, the initial irrevocable Long-Term Incentive Deferral 

Agreement or Restricted Stock Deferral Agreement, as the case may be, 

must be executed and delivered to the Corporation before the later of the 

date established for current Members to submit their next plan year's 

payment Deferral Agreement or thirty (30) days after being designated an 

Eligible Employee for purposes of the Long-Term Incentive Deferral and/or 
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Restricted Stock Award Deferral. 

  (iv) For purposes of Stock Option Deferrals effective initially in 2003, the 

initial Stock Option Deferral Agreement as it applies to a specific Common 

Stock option must be executed and delivered to the Corporation: 

   (A) no later than December 31 of the Plan Year immediately preceding 

the Plan Year in which the Member will exercise such option, and 

   (B) at least six (6) months before the exercise of the Common Stock 

option.   

   This Stock Option Deferral Agreement is irrevocable, but will only apply to 

the stock option(s) designated in the Agreement. 

 (c) Continuing Participation.   

  (i) After the initial year for eligibility, an Eligible Employee may authorize or 

change a previously authorized Salary Deferral for any Plan Year by 

executing and delivering to the Corporation a Salary Deferral Agreement at 

a date determined by the Corporation, but no later than December 31 of 

the Plan Year immediately preceding the Plan Year in which the 

Compensation would otherwise be paid to the Member.  Once a Salary 

Deferral Agreement is made, it will remain in effect for that Plan Year and 

subsequent Plan Years until suspended or changed in accordance with 

these terms.   

  (ii) A Bonus Deferral Agreement must be executed for any Plan Year that a 

Bonus Deferral is desired.  An irrevocable Bonus Deferral Agreement 

must be delivered to the Corporation prior to the last business day of 

March in order to defer that Plan Year's Bonus, payable in the following 
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Plan Year.  A Bonus Deferral Agreement is irrevocable, but may be 

changed for subsequent Plan Years in accordance with these terms. 

  (iii) A Long-Term Incentive Deferral Agreement must be executed for each 

payout year that a Long-Term Incentive Deferral is desired.  The Long-

Term Incentive Deferral Agreement must be delivered to the Corporation 

prior to the last business day of March of the year prior to the plan year of 

payment.  This Long-Term Incentive Deferral Agreement is irrevocable, 

but will only apply to the Long-Term Incentive designated in the 

Agreement. 

  (iv) A Restricted Stock Deferral Agreement must be executed for each 

payment that a Restricted Stock Deferral is desired.  The Restricted 

Stock Deferral Agreement must be delivered to the Corporation more than 

six (6) months prior to the vesting in the Restricted Stock Award and in the 

Plan Year prior to the year in which the Restricted Stock Award vests.  

This Deferral Agreement is irrevocable, but will only apply to the Restricted 

Stock Award designated in the Agreement. 

  (v) A Stock Option Deferral Agreement must be executed for each Common 

Stock option exercise that a Stock Option Deferral is desired.  The 

Stock Option Deferral Agreement must be delivered to the Corporation:  

   (A) no later than December 31 of the Plan Year immediately preceding 

the Plan Year in which the Member will exercise such option, and  

   (B) at least six (6) months before the exercise of the Common Stock 

option. 

   This Stock Option Deferral Agreement is irrevocable, but will only apply to 

the stock option(s) designated in the Agreement. 
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 (d) Participation Procedure.  In order to commence participation in the Plan, an 

Eligible Employee must complete and timely deliver to the Corporation the 

following forms: 

  (i) one or more of the Deferral Agreements referred to above; 

  (ii) a Distribution Election Form which applies to one or more of the Accounts 

for which Deferrals are elected; and 

  (iii) a Beneficiary Designation Form which applies to the Accounts. 

 (e) Election Not to Defer.  An Eligible Employee or Member may elect from time-to-

time not to defer any amount he is eligible to defer hereunder without affecting the 

eligibility to defer at any time in the future as long as he remains an Eligible 

Employee. 
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ARTICLE 3.  CONTRIBUTIONS 

3.01 Amount of Deferral Contributions 

 The amount of contributions to be recorded on the books of the Corporation on behalf of 

a Member's Accounts pursuant to this Section 3.01 shall be equal to the total of the 

Deferrals described herein.   

 (a) Salary Deferrals.  For each payroll period beginning on or after the effective date 

of an Eligible Employee's Salary Deferral Agreement, his Cash Deferral Account 

shall be credited with an amount of Salary Deferrals, if applicable.  The amount of 

Salary Deferrals shall be equal to the designated percentage of Compensation 

elected by the Member in his Salary Deferral Agreement by agreeing to accept a 

reduction in Compensation equal to a stated whole percentage of Compensation 

per payroll period which is not less than five percent (5%) nor more than ninety 

(90%) of Compensation. 

 (b) Bonus Deferral.  The amount of Bonus Deferrals shall be elected by the 

Member by agreeing to accept a reduction in Bonus equal to a stated whole 

percentage in his Bonus Deferral Agreement for that year, which is not less than 

five percent (5%) or one hundred (100) shares of Common Stock nor more than 

ninety (90%) of Bonus. 

 (c) Long-Term Incentive Deferral.  The amount of a Long-Term Incentive Deferral 

shall be elected by the Member by agreeing to accept a reduction in the Long-

Term Incentive equal to a stated whole percentage in the applicable Long-Term 

Incentive Deferral Agreement, which is not less than five percent (5%) or one 

hundred (100) shares of Common Stock nor more than one hundred percent 

(100%) of the Long-Term Incentive. 
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 (d) Restricted Stock Deferral.  The amount of a Restricted Stock Deferral shall be 

elected by the Member by agreeing to accept a reduction in the Restricted Stock 

Award equal to a stated whole percentage of his Common Stock covered in the 

applicable Restricted Stock Deferral Agreement, which is not less than one 

hundred (100) shares of Common Stock nor more than one hundred percent 

(100%) of the award (in whole shares). 

 (e) Stock Option Deferral.  The amount of a Stock Option Deferral shall be elected 

by the Member by agreeing to accept a reduction in Net Shares deliverable to him 

equal to a stated whole percentage of his Net Shares for that Stock Option 

Deferral Agreement, which is not less than one hundred (100) shares of Common 

Stock nor more than one hundred percent (100%) of the Net Shares (in whole 

shares). 

 (f) The Corporation, in its sole discretion, may allow Deferrals in dollar amounts, or a 

combination of percentages and dollar amounts. 

 (g) No election for Deferrals will be effective unless the cash amount or Common 

Stock amount payable to the Member to which the Deferral applies is sufficient to 

satisfy such election. 

 (h) In no event shall the Deferrals of Compensation, Bonus, Long-Term Incentive, 

Common Stock or Net Shares be reduced below the amount required for federal, 

state and local tax and any other required or elected withholding amounts 

(including amounts elected under the Corporation's various benefit plans). 
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3.02 Stock Option Exercise 

 (a) This Section describes the special procedures for deferring the delivery and 

receipt of Common Stock which a Member may receive from the exercise of a 

nonqualified stock option granted to the Member by the Corporation.  The stock 

options are governed by the stock option plan under which they are granted.  No 

stock options or shares of Common Stock are authorized to be issued under the 

Plan.  A Member who elects to defer receipt of Common Stock issuable upon the 

exercise of stock options will have no rights as a stockholder of the Corporation 

with respect to allocations made to his Stock Option Deferral Account except the 

right to receive dividend equivalent allocations as hereafter described. 

 (b) A Member may elect to defer receipt of Net Shares of Common Stock resulting 

from a stock-for-stock exercise of an exercisable stock option issued to the 

Member by completing and submitting to the Corporation his Stock Option 

Deferral Agreement as provided in Section 2.02.  The stock option exercise must 

occur on or prior to the expiration date of the stock option and must be 

accomplished by delivering Common Stock or using another acceptable method, 

such as, attestation, on or prior to the exercise date, shares of Common Stock 

which have been personally owned by the Member for at least six (6) months prior 

to the exercise date and have not been used in a stock swap in the prior six (6) 

months. A Member's Stock Option Deferral Agreement shall not be effective if the 

stock option as to which the Member has made the deferral election terminates 

prior to the exercise date selected by the Member.  If the Member dies or fails to 

deliver shares of Common Stock which have been personally owned by the 

Member at least six (6) months prior to the exercise date (and have not been 

used in a stock swap in the prior six (6) months) in payment of the exercise price, 
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then the Stock Option Deferral Agreement shall not be effective.  Only whole Net 

Shares may be deferred. 

 

3.03 Investment of Accounts 

 (a) The Accounts of each Member shall be credited with an additional amount of 

hypothetical net earnings (or losses) determined under this Section. 

 (b) Except for the Common Stock Deferral Account and the Stock Option Deferral 

Account, each Member shall elect the manner in which his Accounts are to be 

credited with net earnings (and losses) by designating how the Accounts are to 

be invested on a hypothetical basis from among the Investment Funds.  The 

election shall be made in writing on a form provided by the Corporation.  An 

investment election shall be effective for the Valuation Date established by the 

Corporation following its receipt.  Modifications may be made to investment 

elections on the same basis. 

(c) If the Corporation exercises its discretion to establish the Trust, it reserves the 

right to determine the amount of contributions to the Trust and the types of 

investments used, including, but not limited to, mutual funds, annuities and life 

insurance contracts. 

(d) Bonus Deferrals, Long-Term Incentive Deferrals, Restricted Stock Deferrals and 

Stock Option Deferrals of Common Stock may be maintained in their respective 

Accounts on the books of the Corporation or the Common Stock may be held in 

the Trust. 
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3.04 Valuation of Accounts 

 (a) On the first Valuation Date, the Member's Accounts shall equal: 

  (i) the amount of the Member's Deferrals, if any, credited to the Member's 

Accounts during the period from the Effective Date through the first 

Valuation Date; plus 

  (ii) the proportionate share of the net earnings or losses, if any, since the 

Effective Date on the Investment Funds, made available in determining the 

net earnings or losses on a Member's Deferrals; 

  (iii) for purposes of the Common Stock valuation, all dividend equivalents 

payable in relation to Common Stock shall be credited in the form of 

additional whole and fractional shares of Common Stock since the 

Effective Date. 

 (b) On each subsequent Valuation Date, the Member's Accounts shall equal: 

  (i) the Member's Accounts balance as of the immediately preceding Valua-

tion Date; plus 

  (ii) the proportionate share of the net earnings or losses, if any, since the 

immediately preceding Valuation Date on the Investment Funds, made 

available in determining the net earnings or losses on a Member's 

Deferrals; plus 

  (iii) all dividend equivalents payable in relation to the Common Stock (credited 

in the form of additional shares) since the immediately preceding Valuation 

Date; plus 

  (iv) the then value of the Member's Deferrals, if any, credited since the 

immediately preceding Valuation Date; and less 
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  (v) any payments or distributions made in accordance with the terms of the 

Plan from the Member's Accounts since the immediately preceding 

Valuation Date. 

 (c) The Corporation reserves the right to change from time-to-time the procedures 

used in valuing the Accounts or crediting (or debiting) the Accounts if it 

determines that such an action is justified in that it results in a more accurate 

reflection of the fair market value of assets.  In the event of a conflict between the 

provisions of this Section and such new administrative procedures, those new 

administrative procedures shall prevail. 

 (d) In the event that the Corporation determines that any recapitalization, stock split, 

reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, 

combination, repurchase or exchange of Common Stock or other securities of the 

Corporation, issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase Common Stock or 

other securities of the Corporation, or other similar corporate transactions or 

events affects the Common Stock, an appropriate adjustment to the Member's 

Common Stock Deferral Account and Stock Option Deferral Account shall be 

made to prevent reduction or enlargement of the Member's benefits under the 

Plan. 

 

3.05 Vesting of Account 

 The Member shall be fully vested in his Deferrals and earnings credited to his Accounts.  
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3.06 Individual Accounting 

 The Corporation shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, records showing the 

individual balances of each of the Member's Accounts.  At least once a year, each 

Member shall be furnished with a statement setting forth the value of his Accounts. 
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ARTICLE 4.  PAYMENT OF ACCOUNT 

4.01 Payment of Accounts 

 A Member shall be entitled to receive payment of his Accounts upon the Member's 

termination of employment from the Corporation for any reason. 

 

4.02 Method of Payment 

 (a) Unless otherwise elected as provided hereinafter, payment of the Accounts shall 

be made in a single lump sum payment on or as soon as administratively 

possible following the Valuation Date for the month following the month in which 

the Member terminates employment.   

 (b) In lieu of receiving an immediate lump sum payment, the Member may elect from 

time-to-time on a Distribution Election Form to receive his Accounts: 

  (i) in annual installments over a period allowed by the Corporation ranging 

from two (2) to ten (10) years as follows: 

   (A) with respect to Cash Deferral Accounts, annual cash payments 

calculated by multiplying (I) the balance in the Cash Deferral 

Account as of the Valuation Date on which such installment 

payment is being made, times (II) a fraction equal to the reciprocal 

of the number of years remaining in the annual installment period 

elected by the Member; and 

   (B) with respect to Common Stock Deferral Accounts and Stock 

Option Deferral Accounts, approximately equal annual installments 

of Common Stock, or 
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  (ii) in a lump sum payment or in installments as provided in subparagraph (i) 

above beginning as of a specified Valuation Date either before or after his 

termination of employment in accordance with terms established by the 

Corporation.   

 (c) An installment payout election under paragraph (b) above is subject to the 

approval of the Corporation and to be effective must be made no later than: 

  (i) the end of the Plan Year prior to the Plan Year in which the election will be 

effective; and 

  (ii) at least six (6) months prior to the commencement payout date.  

 (d) A Member may complete one Distribution Election Form at the time of the 

Member's initial Deferral hereunder electing a date or dates on which any Member 

Deferrals will be distributed or begin to be distributed to the Member other than the 

Member's termination of employment.  The initial Deferral election period on the 

Distribution Election Form must be at least three (3) Plan Years from the Plan 

Year in which that Deferral occurs. 

  The Member may subsequently extend any Deferral payout date, if the Member's 

subsequent Distribution Election Form is executed and delivered to the 

Corporation at least two (2) Plan Years prior to the then elected payout date.  

 (e) The Corporation may establish rules and procedures which allow a Member to 

complete a separate Distribution Election Form for each Account within the 

Member's Accounts or for an amount in any one of his Accounts based on the 

value of separate Deferral Agreements.  In either situation, the Corporation shall 

revise the Distribution Election Form procedures under paragraph (d) above to  
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allow current and subsequent elections to apply to each Account or to amounts in 

the Accounts based on separate deferral agreements. 

 

4.03 Hardship Distributions 

 The Corporation may, pursuant to rules adopted by it and applied in a uniform manner, 

accelerate the date of distribution of a Member's Accounts (except the Common Stock 

Deferral Account and the Stock Option Deferral Account) because of hardship at any 

time.  "Hardship" shall include an unforeseeable, severe financial condition resulting from 

(a) a sudden and unexpected illness or accident of the Member or his dependents (as 

defined in Section 152(a) of the Code); (b) loss of the Member's property due to casualty; 

or (c) other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of 

events beyond the control of the Member, but which may not be relieved through other 

available resources of the Member, as determined by the Corporation.  The amount of 

the distribution may not be in excess of the amount of the financial need to satisfy the 

hardship, including any amounts necessary to pay any federal, state or local tax 

reasonably anticipated to result from the distribution. 

 

4.04 Other Distributions 

 A Member shall be permitted to accelerate payment from his Accounts on or as soon as 

administratively possible following the Valuation Date coincident with or occurring after at 

least thirty (30) days written notice to the Corporation.  Such payment shall be subject to 

a ten percent (10%) penalty reduction to the Accounts and the Member's future Deferrals 

shall be suspended.  The Member shall be permitted to reauthorize Deferrals for the Plan 

Year following the expiration of a twelve (12)-month period after said distribution, provided 

he still is an Eligible Employee. 
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4.05 Accelerated Tax Distributions 

 In the event any Deferral is finally determined to be income taxable to the Eligible 

Employee prior to any distribution event hereunder, then the Account holding that Deferral 

shall be distributable to the Eligible Employee.  The Eligible Employee shall notify the 

Corporation of the final determination of taxability and will provide all information required 

by the Corporation. 

 

4.06 Compensation Committee Deferral of Distributions 

 The Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, defer payment to a future date 

of any otherwise scheduled distribution that would otherwise result in the loss of a 

corporate income tax deduction under Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m). 

 

4.07 Death Benefit 

 If a Member dies before payment of the entire balance of his Accounts, an amount equal 

to the unpaid portion thereof as of the date of his death shall be made in a single lump 

sum payment to his Beneficiary on or as soon as administratively possible following the 

Valuation Date for the month following the month in which the Member dies. 
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4.08 Designation of Beneficiary 

 Each Member shall file with the Corporation a written designation of one or more 

persons, trust or other recipient as the Beneficiary who shall be entitled to receive the 

amount, if any, payable from his Accounts under the Plan upon his death pursuant to this 

Section 4.07.  A Member may, from time to time revoke or change his Beneficiary 

designation without the consent of any prior Beneficiary by filing a new designation with 

the Corporation.  The last such designation received by the Corporation shall be 

controlling; provided however, that no designation, or change or revocation thereof, shall 

be effective unless received by the Corporation prior to the Member's death, and in no 

event shall it be effective as of a date prior to such receipt.  If no such Beneficiary 

designation is in effect at the time of the Member's death, or if no designated Beneficiary 

survives the Member, the Corporation shall distribute the Member's benefits to the 

following persons in the following order of priority: 

 (a) The Member's surviving spouse; 

 (b) The Member's surviving children, in equal shares; or 

 (c) The legal representative of the Member's estate. 
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ARTICLE 5.  CHANGE IN CONTROL 

5.01 Definition of Change in Control  

Change in Control means any of the following events: 

 (a) Any "person" (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange 

Act as in effect as of the date of this Plan), other than the Corporation or any 

"person" who as of the Effective Date is a director or officer of the Corporation or 

whose shares of Common Stock of the Corporation are treated as "beneficially 

owned" (as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act as in effect as 

of the Effective Date) by any such director or officer, becomes the beneficial 

owner, directly or indirectly, of securities of the Corporation representing twenty-

five percent (25%) or more of the combined voting power of the Corporation's 

then outstanding securities;  

 (b) Individuals who, as of the Effective Date, constitute the Board of Directors of the 

Corporation (the "incumbent board") cease for any reason to constitute at least a 

majority of such Board of Directors, provided, however, that any individual 

becoming a director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination 

for election, was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors 

comprising the "incumbent board" shall be considered as though such individual 

were a member of the "incumbent board," but excluding for this purpose any such 

individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as a result of either an actual 

or threatened election contest (as such terms are used in Regulation 14A 

promulgated under the Exchange Act) or other actual or threatened solicitation of 

proxies or consents by or on behalf of a "person" other than such Board of 

Directors;  
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 (c) A merger or consolidation of the Corporation, other than a merger or consolidation 

in which the voting securities of the Corporation immediately prior to the merger 

or consolidation continue to represent (either by remaining outstanding or being 

converted into securities of the surviving entity) fifty-one percent (51%) or more of 

the combined voting power of the Corporation or surviving entity immediately after 

the merger or consolidation with another entity; 

 (d) A sale, exchange, lease, mortgage, pledge, transfer, or other disposition (in a 

single transaction or a series of related transactions) of all or substantially all of 

the assets of the Corporation which shall include, without limitation, the sale of 

assets or earning power aggregating more than fifty percent (50%) of the assets 

or earning power of the Corporation on a consolidated basis; 

 (e) A liquidation or dissolution of the Corporation; 

 (f) A reorganization, reverse stock split, or recapitalization of the Corporation which 

would result in any of the foregoing; or 

 (g) A transaction or series of related transactions having, directly or indirectly, the 

same effect as any of the foregoing. 

 

5.02 Application in Change in Control 

 To the extent applicable, the provisions of this Article shall control and shall supersede 

any other provisions of the Plan to the extent inconsistent with the provisions of this 

Article. 
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5.03 Payments to and by the Trust 

 If the Corporation determines that it is probable that a Change in Control may occur 

within the six (6)-month period immediately following the date of determination, or if a 

Change in Control in fact occurs in those situations where the Corporation has not 

otherwise made such a determination, the Corporation shall make a contribution to the 

Trust (if in existence at the date of determination or the date of the Change in Control, as 

the case may be) in accordance with the provisions of the Trust.  Solely for purposes of 

determining the amount of such contribution (but in no way in limitation of the 

Corporation's liability under the Plan as determined under other provisions of the Plan), 

the Corporation's total liability under the Plan shall be equal to the value of all Accounts 

established under the Plan, which remain unpaid by the Corporation as of the date of 

determination or the date of the Change in Control, as the case may be, whether or not 

amounts are otherwise currently payable to Members or Beneficiaries under the Plan. All 

such contributions shall be made as soon as possible after the date of determination or 

of the Change in Control, as the case may be, and shall be made in cash and/or 

Common Stock.  Further the Corporation may, in its discretion, make other contributions 

to the Trust from time-to-time for purposes of providing benefits hereunder, whether or 

not a Change in Control has occurred or may occur. 

 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, any contributions to the Trust, as well as any net earnings 

or losses thereon, shall be at all times subject to the provisions of the Trust. 
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5.04 Legal Fees and Expenses 

 The Corporation shall reimburse any Member or Beneficiary for all reasonable legal fees 

and expenses incurred by such Member or Beneficiary after the date of any Change in 

Control in seeking to obtain any right or benefit provided by the Plan. 
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ARTICLE 6.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

6.01 Establishment of Rules 

 The Corporation shall be responsible for providing for the general administration of the 

Plan and for carrying out the provisions of the Plan.  The Corporation from time-to-time 

shall establish rules for the administration of the Plan and the transaction of its business. 

 The Corporation shall have total and complete discretion to interpret the Plan, including, 

but not limited to, the discretion to: 

 (a) determine all questions arising in the administration, interpretation and application 

of the Plan, including the power to construe and interpret the Plan;  

 (b) decide all questions relating to an individual's eligibility for benefits and the 

amounts thereof; 

 (c) decide all facts relevant to the determination of eligibility for benefits or 

participation; 

 (d) make such adjustments which it deems necessary or desirable to correct any 

arithmetical or accounting errors; and 

 (e) determine the amount, form and timing of any distribution to be made hereunder. 

 In making its decision, the Corporation shall be entitled to, but need not rely upon, 

information supplied by a Member, Beneficiary, or representative thereof. The 

Corporation may correct any defect, supply any omission, or reconcile any inconsistency 

in such manner and to such extent as it shall deem necessary to carry out the purposes 

of this Plan.  The Corporation's decisions in such matters shall be binding and conclusive 

as to all parties.  In providing for the administration of the Plan, the Corporation may 

delegate responsibilities for the operation and administration of the Plan by a written 

document or documents filed with the Plan records. 
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6.02 Funding 

 (a) All amounts payable in accordance with this Plan shall constitute a general 

unsecured obligation of the Corporation.  Such amounts, as well as any adminis-

trative costs relating to the Plan, shall be paid out of the general assets of the 

Corporation, to the extent not paid by a grantor trust established pursuant to 

paragraph (b) below.  To the extent the Member or any other person acquires a 

right to receive benefits under this Plan, such right shall be no greater than the 

right of any unsecured general creditor of the Corporation. 

 (b) The Corporation may, for administrative reasons, establish a grantor trust for the 

benefit of Members participating in the Plan.  The Corporation reserves the right to 

determine the amount of contributions to the Trust and the types of investments 

used, including, but not limited to, mutual funds, annuities and life insurance 

contracts. The assets of said trust will be held separate and apart from other 

Corporation funds, and shall be used exclusively for the purposes set forth in the 

Plan and the applicable trust agreement, subject to the following conditions: 

  (i) the creation of said trust shall not cause the Plan to be other than 

"unfunded" for purposes of Title I of ERISA; 

  (ii) the Corporation shall be treated as "grantor" of said trust for purposes of 

Section 677 of the Code; and 

  (iii) said trust agreement shall provide that its assets may be used to satisfy 

claims of the grantor's general creditors in the event of its insolvency, and 

the rights of such general creditors are enforceable by them under federal 

and state law. 



 
 

-31- 

 

 (c) All Accounts under the Plan shall be for bookkeeping purposes only and shall not 

represent a claim against specific assets of the Corporation.  Nothing 

contained in this Plan shall be deemed to create a trust of any kind or 

create any fiduciary relationship.  Payments of amounts credited to 

Accounts under the Plan with respect to those Members and Beneficiaries 

for whom Trust contributions are made shall be made at the Corporation's 

option by the Corporation or from the Trust in accordance with the terms 

of the Trust, but, to the extent not paid by the Corporation, shall be paid by 

the Trust. 

 

6.03 No Contract of Employment 

 The establishment of the Plan shall not be construed as conferring any legal rights upon 

any person for a continuation of employment, nor shall it interfere with the rights of the 

Corporation to discharge any officer and to treat him without regard to the effect which 

such treatment might have upon him as a Member of the Plan. 

 

6.04 Facility of Payment 

 In the event that the Corporation shall find that a Member is unable to care for his affairs 

because of illness or accident, the Corporation may direct that any benefit payment due 

him, unless claim shall have been made therefor by a duly appointed legal representative, 

be paid to his spouse, a child, a parent or other blood relative, or to a person with whom 

he resides, and any such payment so made shall be a complete discharge of the 

liabilities of the Plan therefor. 
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6.05 Withholding Taxes 

 The Corporation shall have the right to deduct from each payment to be made under the 

Plan any required withholding taxes.  In the event employment tax liability or state or local 

tax liability is assessed on amounts paid or payable under this Plan, the Corporation shall 

have the right to deduct from the payment or from the Member's other Compensation any 

required employee portion of the employment tax liability or income tax withholding. 

 

6.06 Nonalienation 

 Subject to any applicable law, no benefit under the Plan shall be subject in any manner to 

anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance or charge, and 

any attempt so to do shall be void, nor shall any such benefit be in any manner liable for 

or subject to garnishment, attachment, execution or levy, or liable for or subject to the 

debts, contracts, liabilities, engagements or torts of the Member or any liability for 

equitable distribution, alimony or other payments for the support of a spouse or former 

spouse, or for any other relative of any Member. 

 

6.07 Construction 

  The Plan is intended to constitute an unfunded deferred compensation arrangement for a 

select group of management or highly compensated employees.  Except to the extent 

superseded by Federal law, all rights hereunder shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio (including its statute or limitations 

provisions).  The Plan shall be construed to effectuate its purpose and the Corporation's 

intent that the Plan be exempt from ERISA, as amended and that amounts deferred 

hereunder not be subject to Federal income tax until distributed. 
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 Except as otherwise provided by law, any action to enforce a right or obligation hereunder 

shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the County of Franklin and State of Ohio. 

 

6.08 Limitations on Liability 

 Notwithstanding any of the preceding provisions of the Plan, neither the Corporation nor 

any individual acting as employee or agent of the Corporation shall be liable to any 

Member, former Member or other person for any claim, loss, liability or expense incurred 

in connection with the Plan. The Corporation does not undertake any responsibility to any 

Member for the tax consequences of a particular Member's election to defer income 

under this Plan. 

 

6.09 Administrative Expense 

 All expenses of administering this Plan shall be paid by the Corporation and no part of the 

expenses or taxes on the Corporation shall be charged against any Member's Accounts 

or any benefits distributed under the Plan. 

 

6.10 Claims and Review Procedures 

 (a) In accordance with any rules and procedures adopted by the Corporation, 

applications for benefits shall be submitted to the Corporation on a prescribed 

form signed by the Member or, in the case of a death benefit, by his Beneficiary. 

 

  The Corporation shall, within 90 days after the receipt of a written claim, send 

written notification to the Participant or Beneficiary (referred to in the remainder of 

this Section as the "claimant") as to its disposition, unless special circumstances 

require an extension of time for processing the claim.  If such an extension is 
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agreed to by the parties, but in no event more than one hundred twenty (120) days 

after such receipt), the Corporation shall notify the claimant of its final decision. 

Such final decision shall be in writing and shall include specific reasons for the 

decision and specific references to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the 

decision is based.  If an extension of time for review is required because of special 

circumstances, written notice of the extension shall be furnished to the claimant 

prior to the commencement of the extension.  If the claim has not been granted and 

written notice is not provided within the time period specified above, the appeal 

shall be deemed denied. 

 (c) If the claimant does not follow the procedures set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) 

above, the claimant shall be deemed to have waived his right to appeal benefit 

determinations under the Plan.  In addition, the decisions, actions, and records of 

the Corporation shall be conclusive and binding upon the Corporation and all 

persons having or claiming to have any right or interests in or under the Plan. 

 

6.11 Illegal or Invalid Provision 

 In case any provision of the Plan shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, such illegal 

or invalid provision shall not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, but the Plan shall be 

construed and enforced without regard to such illegal or invalid provision. 
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6.12 Gender and Number 

 Except as otherwise indicated by context, masculine terminology used herein also includes 

the feminine, and terms used in the singular may also include the plural. 

 

6.13 Successors 

 All obligations of the Corporation under the Plan shall be binding on any successor to the 

Corporation, whether the existence of such successor is the result of a direct or indirect 

purchase of all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of the Corporation, or a 

merger, consolidation or otherwise. 
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required, written notice of the extension shall be furnished to the claimant prior to 

the termination of the initial ninety (90)-day period.  In no event shall such 

extension exceed a period of ninety (90) days from the end of such initial period.  

The extension notice shall indicate the special circumstances requiring an 

extension of time and the date by which the Corporation expects to render the 

final decision. 

 

  In the event the claim is wholly or partially denied, the written notification shall 

state the specific reason or reasons for the denial, include specific references to 

pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial is based, provide an explanation of 

any additional material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the 

claim and a statement of why such material or information is necessary, and set 

forth the procedure by which the claimant may appeal the denial of the claim.  If 

the claim has not been granted and notice is not furnished within the time period 

specified in the preceding paragraph, the claim shall be deemed denied for the 

purpose of proceeding to appeal in accordance with paragraph (b) below. 

 (b) In the event a claimant wishes to appeal the denial of his claim, he may request a 

review of such denial by making written application to the Corporation within sixty 

(60) days after receipt of the written notice of denial (or the date on which such 

claim is deemed denied if written notice is not received within the applicable time 

period specified in paragraph (a) above).  Such claimant (or his duly authorized 

representative) may, upon written request to the Corporation, review documents 

which are pertinent to such claim, and submit in writing issues and comments in 

support of his position.  Within sixty (60) days after receipt of the written appeal 

(unless an extension of time is necessary due to special circumstances or is 
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ARTICLE 7.  AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION 

 

The Corporation reserves the right to modify or to amend, in whole or in part, or to terminate this 

Plan any time by action of its Compensation Committee, taken at a meeting held either in person 

or by telephone or other electronic means, or by unanimous written consent by lieu of a meeting. 

 However, no modification or amendment of the Plan shall adversely affect the right of any 

Member to receive the benefits granted under the Plan by the Corporation in respect to such 

Member as of the date of modification or amendment.   

 

If the Plan is terminated, payments from the Accounts of all Members and Beneficiaries shall be 

made as soon as administratively convenient in the form of monthly payments over a three (3)-

year period; however, the Compensation Committee, in its sole discretion, may pay benefits in a 

lump sum. 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, following a Change in Control no modification, amendment or 

termination of the Plan shall change the right of any Member to direct investments, to direct the 

investment forms, to make distribution elections whether in-service or at termination of service 

from those rights the Member  had at the date of modification, amendment or termination, 

without the written consent of a majority in number of the Members, except when to comply with 

legal or regulatory requirements necessary to maintain the tax deferred status of any Deferrals. 



2003
(in thousands of dollars) First Fourth Third Second First

Earnings:

Income before taxes 120,855$ 99,081$    124,797$  101,094$ 217,847$  
Add: Fixed charges, excluding interest on deposits 41,478      44,623      41,144      39,902     44,119      

Earnings available for fixed charges,
    excluding interest on deposits 162,333 143,704 165,941 140,996 261,966
Add: Interest on deposits 80,817 89,434 95,629 94,865 109,967

Earinings available for fixed charges,
    including interest on deposits 243,150$ 233,138$  261,570$  235,861$ 371,933$  

Fixed Charges:
Interest expense, excluding
    interest on deposits 38,545      41,757      38,265      37,063     40,803      
Interest factor in net rental expense 2,933        2,866        2,879        2,839       3,316        

Total fixed charges, excluding 
    interest on deposits 41,478 44,623 41,144 39,902 44,119
Add: Interest on deposits 80,817      89,434      95,629      94,865     109,967    

Total fixed charges, including
    interest on deposits 122,295$ 134,057$  136,773$  134,767$ 154,086$  

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Excluding  interest on deposits 3.91 x 3.22 x 4.03 x 3.53 x 5.94 x
Including interest on deposits 1.99 x 1.74 x 1.91 x 1.75 x 2.41 x

2002
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Huntington Bancshares Incorporated
Quarterly Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

(Unaudited)



 

 

Exhibit 99.2 
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

 
 In connection with the Quarterly Report of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated 
(the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ending March 31, 2003, as filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Thomas E. 
Hoaglin, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, 
as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 
 
  (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) 
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
 
  (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 
 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been 
provided to Huntington Bancshares Incorporated and will be retained by Huntington 
Bancshares Incorporated and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its 
staff upon request. 
 

 
 

        /s/ Thomas E. Hoaglin   
Thomas E. Hoaglin 
Chief Executive Officer 
May 20, 2003 



 

 

Exhibit 99.3 
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

 
 In connection with the Quarterly Report of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated 
(the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ending March 31, 2003, as filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Michael J. 
McMennamin, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 
1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 
 
  (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) 
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
 
  (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 
 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been 
provided to Huntington Bancshares Incorporated and will be retained by Huntington 
Bancshares Incorporated and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its 
staff upon request. 
 

 
       /s/ Michael J. McMennamin      

Michael J. McMennamin 
Chief Financial Officer 
May 20, 2003 
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